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of this chapter) during the preceding 12A months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). 4€,Yesa€fa"’a€,Noa€fa Indicate
by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company or an emerging growth
company. See definitions of &€celarge accelerated filer,a€ a€ceaccelerated filer,a€ &€cesmaller reporting company,a€ and 4€ceemerging growth companya€ in Rule

12b-2 of the Exchange Act. LargeA acceleratedA filera~AcceleratedA filera”A A A A Non-accelerated

filera™’SmallerA reportingA companya™A A A A A A EmergingA growthA companya™If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has
elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to SectionA 13(a)A of the
Exchange Act.&€,4"Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in RuleA 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). 4€,Yes 44€,No 4™’ As of
November 15, 2024, there were 23,275,171 shares of common stock, $0.0001 par value, issued and outstanding.a€<a€<Table of Contentsa€<ATLASCLEAR
HOLDINGS, INC.FORM 10-Q FOR THE QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024TABLE OF CONTENTS&€<PagePart I. Financial Information3Item 1. Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements3Condensed Consolidated Balance sheet as of September 30, 2024 (unaudited) and June 30, 20243Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (Unaudited)4Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Stockholdersa€™ Deficit for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (Unaudited)5Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three
months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (Unaudited)6Notes to Condensed consolidated financial Statements (Unaudited)8Item 2. Managementa€™s



Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations31Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk41Item 4. Controls
and Procedures41Part II. Other Information42Item 1. Legal Proceedings42Item 1A. Risk Factors42Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities, Use of Proceeds
and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities42Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities42Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures42Item 5. Other Information42Item 6.
Exhibits43Signatures444a€<&€«a€<2Table of ContentsPART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATIONItem 1. Interim Consolidated Financial Statements. ATLASCLEAR
HOLDINGS, INC.CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETSa€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<September 30,4€June

30,a€<A A A A 2024A A A A 20244€<4€<«(Unaudited)a€<a€<a€<ASSETSA a€<A A A 4€<A A Cash and cash equlvalentsA $ 6,817,398A $ 6,558,176Cash segregated -
customersa€«a€« 19,980,711a€<4€<« 20,548,972Cash segregated - PABa€fA 768,7674€<A 200,738Receivables - broker-dealers and clearing organizationsa€<A
1,917,1754€<A 1,333,306Receivables - customers, neta€<A 170,690a€<A 823,7840ther receivablesa€<a€« 230,037a€<a€<« 64,842Prepaidsa€<a€« 44,275a€<a€«
67,967Trading securities, market value, neta€<a€<« 55a€<«a€« 55Total Current Assetsa€<«a€« 29,929,108a€<a€<« 29,597,840a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«Operating lease right
to use lease asseta€<a€« 288,191a€<a€« 326,336Property and equipment, netd€<a€< 11,511a€<a€<« 16,080Customer list, neta€<«a€« 13,843,665a€<a€«
14,150,856Goodwilla€<a€< 6,142,525a€<a€< 7,706,725Pacsquare asset purchasea€<«a€« 1,928,800a€<«a€« 1,726,500Cash deposits - broker-dealers and clearing
organizations a€<a€< 3,515,0004€<4€< 3,515,000Bank acquisition deposita€<a€<« 4€”a€<a€<« 91,2000ther assetsa€<A 336,017a€<A 336,017TOTAL ASSETSa€<$
55,994,817a€<$ 57,466,5548€<4€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a@€<LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERSa€™ DEFICITa€<A AAaeAAA LIABILITIESa€ <a€ <a€ «a€ «a€«a€<«Payables to
customersa€«$ 20,009,8734€<$ 20,162,973Accounts and payables to officers/directorsa€<«a€« 728,936a€<«4€« 686,579Accounts payable and accrued expensesa€<A
4,615,650a4€<A 5,393,912Payables - broker-dealers and clearing organizationsa€<A 20,238a€<«A 4,915Commissions, payroll and payroll taxesa€<A 221,7694€<A
273,386Current portion of lease 11ab111tya€<A 138,2184€<A 149,499Stock payable 4€<A€< 63,742a€<4€« 259, 893Promissory notesa€<«a€« 852,968a€<a€«
852,968Short-term merger financing, neta€<A 4,790,907a€<A 5,092,083Contingent guaranteea€<A &4€”a€<A 3,256,863Tau agreement liabilitya€<a€<
972,5084€<4€<4€”Subscription agreementa€<A 2,460,4884€<A 2,425,647Stock payable A€“ related partya€<A 55,0874€<A 55,087Excise tax payablea€<a€«
2,067,572a€<a€<« 2,067,572Total Current Liabilitiesd€<«a€« 36,997,956a€<a€« 40,681,377a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Accrued contingent liabilitya€<«a€<« 100,0008€<a€«
100,000Convertible notes, neta€<a€« 3,282,518a€<a€« 3,783,437Secured convertible note, neta€<a€« 7,066,449a€<a€<« 6,857,101 Long-term merger financing,
neta€«a€< 7,708,615a€<a€<« 7,606,561 Merger financing 4€“ convertible notesa€<a€« 2,985,237a€<«a€<a€” Derivative liability 4€“ secured convertible notea€<a€«<
89,5354€<a€<a€ " Derivative liability 4€“ merger financinga€<«a€« 176,239a€<«a€<«a€” Derivative liability - convertible notesa€<a€« 2,142,511a€<a€«<
16,462,690Derivative liability - Warrantsa€<«a€« 61,531a€<«a€« 307,656Earnout - liabilitya€<a€« 12,638,000a€<a€< 12,298,000Deferred income tax liabilityd€<a€«<
3,702,645a€<a€< 5,245,886Subordinated borrowingsa€<«a€« 1,950,000a€<a€< 1,950,000Trading account deposita€<«a€< 100,000a€<a€< 100,000Long-term lease
liabilitya€<a€< 155,616a€<a€< 182,729TOTAL LIABILITIESa€<«a€« 79,156,852a€<a€« 95,575,4374€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Commitments and Contingencies (Note
9)4€<A€ A€ A€ AL AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAESTOCKHOLDERSAE™ DEFICITA€<A A A 4€<A A A Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized;
none issued or outstandinga€<A 4€”4€<A &4€”Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 22,245,698 and 12,455,157 shares issued and
outstanding at September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, respectively (excluding 1,029,473 shares issued under the Tau Agreement included in liabilities as of
September 30, 2024)a€<A 2,225a€<A 1,246Additional paid-in-capitala€<a€« 114,517,1314€<4€< 110,164,676Stock subscription receivablea€<A

(154,619)a€<A a€”Accumulated Deficita€<A (137,526,772)a€<A (148,274,805)TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS&€™ DEFICITA€<A (23,162,035)a€<A (38,108,883)TOTAL
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS&€™ DEFICITa€<$ 55,994,817a€<$ 57,466,5544€<The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements.a€<a€<«3Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS(UNAUDITED)a€ a€<a€<a€<a€<a€«a€<a€«a€«a€<«Three Months Endeda€<«a€<September

30,a6<A A A A 2024A A A A 2023REVENUESA€<A€<A€<a€<a€<a€<«Commissions 4€<$ 1,383,8284€<$ 4€”Vetting feesa€<«a€« 365,3834€ A€« 4€”Clearing feesa€<a€«
1,047,7124€<4€< a€”Net gain/(loss) on firm trading accountsa€«a€« 1,7114€<a€« 4€”Other revenue 4€<a€« 5,448a€<4€<« 4€"TOTAL REVENUESA€<A 2,804,0824€<A
A€ A€ A A€ AE<AEAEAEEXPENSESAE A€ A€ a€<a€a€<«Compensation, payroll taxes and benefitsa€«A 1,279,3044€<A a€”Data processing and clearing costsa€<A
611,646a€<A 4€”Regulatory, professional fees and related expensesa€<A 1,095,819a€<A 640,813Communicationsa€<A 152,7544€<A 4€”Occupancy and
equipmenta€<A 54,0044€<A A€”Transfer feesa€«A 51,5904€<A A4€”Bank charges 4€<A 55,9014€<A 4€”Intangible assets amortizationa€<4€<307,1914€<4€<
4€”Othera€<A 136,9758€<A 4€"TOTAL EXPENSES&€<«A 3,745,1844€<A 640,8134€<A€<A€A€AE<AE<AE<LOSS FROM OPERATIONSA€ A€« (941,102)a€<a€<
(640,813)a€a€<a€«a€<a€«a€«@€<«OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE) a€<a€<a€«a€<«a€«a€<Interest incomead€«a€« 606,758a€«a€<« 722,390Change in fair value of warrant
liability derivativea€<«a€« 246,125a€<a€<« (184,594)Change in fair value of convertible note derivativea€<«a€« 3,167,3094€<a€« a€”Change in fair value of long-term
and short-term note derivativea€<a€« 11,152,870a€<«a€« a€”Change in fair value of contingent guaranteea€«a€« (839,775)a€«a€<«a€”Change in fair value of non-
redemption agreement a€<a€<«a€”a€<&€« (11,759)Change in fair value of secured convertible noted€<a€« (89,535)a€<4€<«a€”Change in fair value of merger
financinga€<«a€« (63,195)a€<a€<a€”Change in fair value of earnout liabilitya€<a€« (340,000)a€<«a€<« a€”Change in fair value of subscription agreementa€<a€«
(34,841)a€<a€<« a€”Change in fair value of stock payablea€<a€« 196,151a€<a€« a4€”Change in fair value of Tau agreementa€<«a€« (833,984)a€«a€<«a€”Interest
expensea€«a€« (1,456,996)a€<a€« a€"TOTAL OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE)a€<a€< 11,710,887a€<a€< 526,037a€<a€<a€<«a€<a€<«a€<«a€<NET INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE
INCOME TAXES&€<A 10,769,785a€<A (114,776)a€<A€A€<AEAEAEAEIncome tax (expense) benefita€«a€« (21,752)a4€<A€« (141,202)4€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAENET
INCOME/(LOSS)a€<$ 10,748,033a€<$ (255,978)a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«@€«Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding, redeemable common stocka€«a€«
a€”a€<a€« 5,205,217Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share, redeemable common stocka€<$ a€”a€<$(0.03)a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«Basic weighted average
shares outstanding, non-redeemable common stocka€<a€« 15,384,357a€<a€< 5,031,250Basic net income (loss) per share, non-redeemable common
stocka€<«$0.70a€<$(0.03)a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«Diluted weighted average shares outstanding, non-redeemable common stocka€<«a€« 114,565,050a€<a€«
5,031,250Diluted net income (loss) per share, non-redeemable common stocka€<$(0.00)a€<$ (0.03)a€<«The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.4Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS&€™ DEFICIT(UNAUDITED)FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

20244€ A€ A€ A€ AEAE AEAE AL AL AEAE AL AEAE AEAE AL AL AEAEAEAEAEAEt«AaEAdditionala€«a€ A€ A€ A€ A€ «AE<Totala€a€«CommonA Stocka€<Paid-
in&€<Subscriptiona€«Accumulateda€«Stockholdersa€™a€<«A A A A SharesA A A A AmountA A A A Capitala€<ReceivableA A A A DeficitA A A A DeficitBalance a€”
June 30, 2024A 12,455,1574€<$ 1,2464€<$ 110,164,6764€<$4€"4€<$ (148,274,805)a€<$ (38,108,883)

A€ A€ AL AL AL AL AEAEAEAEAEAE AL AL AEAEAE«dE«Common stock issued to for consulting servicesA 12,0004€<A 1a€<A 2,5774€4€<A€"A€<A a€”a€<A 2,578
4€<A€<AE<AEAE AL AE AL AEAEAEAE AL AL AEAEAEAEShares issued as purchase consideration for the assets of PacsquareA 500,0008€<A 50a€<A
122,2504€<A€<A€"AE<A 4€78€<A 122,300 A€<AE<AE€AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEShares issued as conversion of $325,000 in principle on
convertible notes A 1,769,122a€<A 177a€<A 324,8234€4€A€"A€<A 4€"AEA 325,000 A€<AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEALAEALAEAEAEAEAEAEShares transferred
by related parties as settlement for Company obligations under various financial instruments see Note 8a€« a€”a€<«a€« a€”a€<«a€«
2,412,9304€<A€<A€"A€<A€<AE"AE<AE< 2,412,930 A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ AL AL AE A A AE A A A€ A€ af A€ a€«Shares issued as conversion of $359,896 in principal and
$7,530 of interest on short-term merger financing notesA 1,862,1164€<A 186a€<A 367,240a€<4€« A€”a€<A 4€”a€<A 367,426

A€ <AE A€ <AE AL <AL AE<AE AEAEAEAEAEAE(AE AL AEAE<Shares issued to related party as settlement for $803,860 in related party payable.A 2,788,276a€<A
279a€<A 803,5814€<4€< AE”A€<A 4€”A€<A 803,8604€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEaEShares issued to as additional consideration for
delayed payment on merger financing notesa€« 76,000a€<a€< 84€<a€<« 16,332a€<a€<« 4€”a€<a€<a€"a€<a€< 16,340
a€<a€<a€«a€«a€«a€«ac«a€«a€«ac«ac«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«Shares issued under Tau agreement settled through September 30, 2024a€« 1,445,527a€<a€< 144a€<a€<
302,856a€<a€< (154,619)a€<a€<« a€”a€<a€< 148,381 G€<A€<A€<AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<aE<aE<a€<a€<aE<Shares issued for shares transferred by related party
as repayment of shares transferred to cover Company obligations as noted above net of contributed capital for debt assumed (see Note 8)a€< 1,337,500a€<a€«
1344€<a€< (134)a€<a€<« A€”A€ A€« AE"AE@E« AE” AEAE<A€<A€<A€AEAEAEAEAE<A€<AC<AEAEAEAEaf«af«Net l0ssa€«a€”a€«a€«a€”a€«a€«a€"a€«a€« 4€7a€<a€«
10,748,0334€<4€< 10,748,033 A€<A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEBalance 4€” September 30, 2024 (unaudited)A 22,245,6984€<$ 2,2254€<$
114,517,1314€<$ (154,619)a€<$ (137,526,772)a€<$ (23,162,035)4€<FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

20234€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAE AEAE AEAE AL AL AL AEAE AL AL AL AL AEAEAdditionala€ A€ «a€<a€<Totala€«a€«CommonA Stocka€Paid-
ina€<«Accumulateda€«Stockholdersa€™a€<«A A A A SharesA A A A AmountA A A A CapitalA A A A DeficitA A A A DeficitBalance 4€” June 30, 2023 (unaudited)A
5,031,2504€<$ 503a€<$ a€”4€<$ (7,914,849)a€<$ (7,914,346)a€ A€ <A€ A€ <A€ A€ A€<AEAE<AE<AEaE<aEa€<a€<Accretion of Common Stock subject to Possible
RedemptionA A€”a€A 4€”a€<A A4€"4€<A (1,020,680)4€<A (1,020,680)4€<A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEFair value of non-redemption agreement
liability at issuancea€« a€”a€<a€« a€”a€«a€« a€”a€«a€« (1,881,440)a€<a€« (1,881,440)a€<a€<a€<a€<A€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€«a€<a€<a€<Excise taxes related to
redemptionsA 3€”3€<A 4€”4€<A A€"AE<A (42,865)4E<A (42,865)a€ A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEQEBEAENet lossA a€”a€<A 4€7a€A A€"a€A
(255,978)a€<A (255,978)4€<A€<AE A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEBalance 4€” September 30, 2023 (unaudited)A 5,031,2504€<A 5034€<A A€"a4€<A
(11,115,812)a€<A (11,115,309)a€<The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.a€<5Table of
ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INQ QONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS(UNAUDITED)a€<a€<é€<é€<é€<é€<é€<é€<é€<é€<Three
Months Ended 4€<4€<September 30,4€<A A A A 2024A A A A 20234€<4€<4€<A€4€<A€<A€Net income (loss)A $ 10,748,0334€<$ (255, 978)Adjustments to reconcile
net income to net cash provided by operating activities:4€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€ncome earned on marketable securities held in trust accounta€<A a€”a€<A

(716, 882)Change in fair value of warrant liability derivativea€<«A (246,125)a€A 184, 594Change in fair value of convertible note derivativea€<A

(3,167, 309)a€<A 4€”Change in fair value of long-term and short-term note derivativea€<A (11,152,870)a€<A 4€”Change in fair value of contingent guaranteea€<A
839,7754€<A 4€”Change in fair value of non- redemption agreementa€<A 4€”a€<A 11,759Change in fair value of secured convertible notea€<A 89,535a€<A
4€”Change in fair value of merger financinga€<A 63,195a€<A a€”Change in fair value of earnout liability 4€<A 340,0004€<A a€”Change in fair value of
subscription agreementa€< &€« 34,841a€<« a4€<« 4€”Change in fair value of stock payable a€<a€< (196,151)a€<a€<« a&€”Change in fair value of Tau agreementa€«a€«<
833,9844€<a€« a€”Late fee paid in shares to sellersa€<«a€« 16,340a€<a€<« a€”Non-cash interest in expense on financial instrumentsa€<a€« 1,403,503a€<a€<
4€”Realized gain on Tau agreementa€<«a€« 30,5624€<4€< 4€”Stock based compensationa€<A 2,578a€<«A a€”Bank acquisition deposit write offa€<a€«
91,2004€<4€<4€”Depreciation expensea€<A 4,5694€<A 4€”Amortization of intangiblesa€«A 307,1914€<A a€”Allowance for bad debta€«A 639a€<A A€”Net lease
paymentsa€<A (249)a€<A 4€”Changes in operating assets and liabilities:2€<A 4€<4€<A 4€<Receivables from brokers & dealersa€<A (583,869)a€<a€« 4€”Receivables
from customersa€<A 652,4554€<4€« 4€”Receivables from othersa€<A (57,235)a€«a€<« 4€”Advances & prepaid expensesa€<A 23,6924€<4€< (18,750)Other
assetsa€«A A€”4€<A€« (4,245)Payables to customersa€<«A (153,100)a€<4€« 4€”Payables to officers & directorsa€«A 42,357a€<4€<« 4€”Payable to brokers &
dealersa€<A 15,3234€<4€< A€”Accounts payable and accrued expensesa€<A 223,4014€<4€< 161,531Commissions and payroll taxes payablea€<«A (51,617)a€<a€«
a€”Deferred taxesé€<A 20,959a€<a€<« a€”CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIESé€<A 175,607a€<a€< (637,971)a€<«a€<«6Table of
ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

PacsquareA a€< (65,000)A 4€< 4€”Investment of cash into Trust AccountA 4€< 4€”A a€« (495, OOO)CaSh withdrawn from Trust Account to pay franchise and income
taxesA a€< 4€”A a€< 359,897Cash withdrawn from Trust Account in connection with redemptlonA A€« 4€”A a€< 4,286,537CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)



INVESTING ACTIVITIESA &€« (65,000)A 4€< 4,151,4344€<A€ A€ <A€A€<A€AE<CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESA 4€<A A A 4€<A A Advances from
related partyA 4€< 4€”A 4€< 352,981Proceeds from Tau agreementA 4€< 148,383A 4€« 4€”Redemption of common stockA 4€< A€”A &€« (4,286,537)CASH PROVIDED
BY (USED FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIESA a€«< 148,383A a€« (3,933,556)4€ A€ <A€ A€ <A€<a€<AENET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASHA a€« 258,990A a€«
(420,093)4€<a€<a€ A€ A€ <AE<AE<«CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEARA 4€< 27,307,886A &€« 1,132,9004€<A€<A€<A€ A€ <A€<AE<CASH AT YEAR END&£<$ 27,566,8764€<$
712,8074€<a€<a€<a€a€«a€<«a€<Supplemental cash flow information:a€<a€<a€<a€<«a€<«a€<«Cash paid for interesta€«a€« 4€”4€<a4€<« 4€”Cash paid for taxesa€«a€«
a€"a€<«a€« 4€"4€<a€<a€a€«a€«a€«a€<Non-cash investing and financing activities: a€<«A A A a€<A A A Decrease in goodwill due to change in deferred tax 11ab111tya€<A
1,562, 200a€<1} 4€”Initial shares issued under Tau agreementa€<A 441,5244€<A &€”Value of shares transferred by related parties to settle obligationsa€<A
2,412,9304€<A a€”Shares issued to purchase Pacsquare and amounts included in accounts payablea€<A 137,300a€<A a€”Shares issued to related party for
settlement of accounts payablea€<A 803,860a4€<A &€”Receivable from shares advanced under Tau agreementa€<A 154,619a€<A &€”Shares issued for conversion
on convertible notesd€<A 325,0004€<A &€”Shares issued for conversion of principal and interest on short-term notea€<A 367,426a€<A a€”Initial value of
derivative included in merger financinga€<4€< 113,0444€<4€< 4€”Accretion of common stock subject to possible redemptiona€<A a€”a€<A 1,020,680Excise tax
related to redemptionsa€<a€« a€”a€<a€« 42,865Initial classification of non-redemption agreement liabilitya€<a€<a€”a€<a€< 1,884,440a€<«The accompanying notes
are an integral part of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.a€<a€<7Table of ContentsSATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)a€<NOTEA 1. DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS
OPERATIONSAtlasClear Holdings, Inc. (formerly known as Calculator New Pubco, Inc.) (the &€ceCompanya€ or &€ceAtlasClear Holdingsa€) is a Delaware
corporation and, prior to the Business Combination (defined below), was a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of Quantum FinTech Acquisition Corporation
(@€ceQuantuma€). Quantum was incorporated in Delaware on October 1, 2020. Quantum was a blank check company formed for the purpose of entering into a
merger, share exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, recapitalization, reorganization or other similar business combination with one or more businesses or
entities.On February 9, 2024 (the a€ceClosing Datea€), the Company consummated the previously announced transactions pursuant to that certain Business
Combination Agreement, dated November 16, 2022 (as amended, the a€ceBusiness Combination Agreementa€), by and among the Company, Quantum, Calculator
Merger Sub 1, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the registrant (d4€ceMerger Sub 14€), Calculator Merger Sub 2, Inc., a Delaware
corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the registrant (2€ceMerger Sub 2a€), AtlasClear, Inc., a Wyoming corporation (a€ceAtlasCleara€), Atlas FinTech
Holdings Corp., a Delaware corporation (a€ceAtlas FinTecha€) and Robert McBey. The transactions consummated as a result of the Business Combination
Agreement are hereinafter referred to as the a&€ceBusiness Combination.&€ In connection with the consummation of the Business Combination (the a€ceClosinga€),
the Company changed its name from a€oceCalculator New Pubco, Inc.4€ to a€ceAtlasClear Holdings, Inc.a€ As a result, the operation history of Quantum survived
the merger. Pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement, AtlasClear received certain assets from Atlas FinTech and Atlas Financial Technologies Corp., a
Delaware corporation, and (ii) Broker-Dealer Acquisition Agreement (as defined in the Business Combination Agreement), AtlasClear completed the acquisition of
broker-dealer, Wilson-Davis & Co., Inc. (&4€eWilson-Davisa€).On February 16, 2024, AtlasClear and Pacsquare Technologies, LLC (a€cePacsquarea€) entered into a
Source Code Purchase and Master Services Agreement (the &€cePacsquare Purchase Agreementa€), pursuant to which AtlasClear purchased a proprietary trading
platform with clearing and settlement capabilities that will be developed by Pacsquare, including certain software and source code (the a€oeAtlasClear
Platforméa€).AtlasClear Holdingsa€™ goal is to build a cutting-edge technology enabled financial services firm that would create a more efficient platform for
trading, clearing, settlement and banking, with evolving and innovative financial products that focus on financial services firms. AtlasClear Holdings is a fintech
driven business-to-business platform that expects to power innovation in fintech, investing, and trading. AtlasClear does not meet the definition of a business and
therefore was treated as an asset acquisition by AtlasClear Holdings. As such the assets contributed from Atlas FinTech and the net assets of AtlasClear were
recognized at historical cost. ASC 350 prohibits the recognition of goodwill in an asset purchase.Quantum was deemed the accounting acquirer based on the
following factors: i) Quantum issued cash and shares of its common stock; ii) Quantum controlled the voting rights under the no redemption and the maximum
contractual redemption scenarios; iii) Quantum had the largest minority voting interest; iv) Quantum has control over the board of directors of the post-
combination company and most of senior management of the post-combination company are former officers of Quantum.Wilson-Davis is a securities broker and
dealer, dealing in over-the-counter and listed securities. Wilson-Davis is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 4€eSECa€) and is a
member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority.Revenue is derived principally from Wilson-Davis&€™ operations in three areas: commission revenue, fee
revenue and interest revenue.Wilson-Davis has operations in Utah, Arizona, California, Colorado, Florida, New York, Oklahoma and Texas. Transactions for
customers are principally in the states where the Company operates, however, some customers are located in other states in which the Company is registered.
Principal trading activities are conducted with other broker dealers throughout the United States.Going ConcernAs of September 30, 2024, the Company had
$6,817,398 in its operating bank accounts and working capital deficit of $7,068,848.8Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024 (Unaudited)The Company has raised and intends to raise additional capital through loans or
additional investments from its stockholders, officers, directors, or third parties. The Companya€™s officers and directors may, but are not obligated to loan the
Company funds, from time to time, in whatever amount they deem reasonable in their sole discretion, to meet the Companya€™s working capital needs.In
connection with the Companya€™ s assessment of going concern considerations in accordance with Financial Accounting Standard Boarda€™s Accounting
Standards Codification Subtopic 205-40, a€cePresentation of Financial Statements 4€“ Going Concern,a€ the liquidity of the Company raises substantial doubt
about the Companya€™ s ability to continue as a going concern through the twelve months following the issuance of the financial statements. If the Company is
unable to raise additional capital, it may be required to take additional measures to conserve liquidity, which could include, but not necessarily be limited to,
curtailing operations and reducing overhead expenses. The Company cannot provide any assurance that new financing will be available to it on commercially
acceptable terms, if at all. No adjustments have been made to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities as a result of this uncertainty.a€<Inflation Reduction Act
of 2022Any redemption or other repurchase that occurs after December 31, 2022, in connection with a Business Combination, extension vote or otherwise, may be
subject to the excise tax. As such the Company has accrued for the estimated excise tax as a result of the redemptions that occurred after December 31, 2022. As
of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 the excise tax payable is $2,067,572. As of the date of filing the Company has not paid the excise tax as such the
Company may be subject to interest and penalties as a result. NOTEA 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESBasis of PresentationThe
accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (4€0eGAAPa€) for interim financial information and in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 8 of Regulation S-X of
the SEC. Certain information or footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed or
omitted, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC for interim financial reporting. Accordingly, they do not include all the information and footnotes
necessary for a complete presentation of financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements include all adjustments, consisting of a normal recurring nature, which are necessary for a fair presentation of the
financial position, operating results and cash flows for the periods presented.The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be
read in conjunction with the Companya€™s Transition Report on Form 10-KT, as filed with the SEC on October 16, 2024. The accompanying condensed balance
sheet as of June 30, 2024 has been derived from the audited financial statements included in the Form 10-KT. The interim results for the three months ended
September 30, 2024 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the year ending June 30, 2025 or for any future periods.Principles of
ConsolidationThe accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.GoodwillWe perform our goodwill impairment assessment whenever events or
changes in facts or circumstances indicate that impairment may exist and during the fourth quarter each year. The cash flow estimates, and discount rates
incorporate managementa€™s best estimates, using appropriate and customary assumptions and projections at the date of evaluation. As a result of the Deferred
tax the Goodwill balance was reduced by the benefit received. As of September 30, 2024, the fair value of goodwill was $6,142,525, as described in Note 10.9Table
of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)Intangible
AssetsDeveloped technology and customer relationships are amortized using the straight-line method over the ten-year and twelve-year estimated useful lives of
the assets, respectively. As of September 30, 2024, the carrying value of developed technology and customer list was $1,928,800 and $13,843,665, respectively, as
described in Note 10 and Note 11.Impairment of Long-lived and Intangible AssetsThe Company had no impairment charges during the three-month periods ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023.Warrant LiabilitiesThe Company accounts for warrants as either equity-classified or liability-classified instruments based on an
assessment of the warrants.For issued or modified warrants that meet all of the criteria for equity classification, the warrants are required to be recorded as a
component of additional paid-in capital at the time of issuance. For issued or modified warrants that do not meet all the criteria for equity classification, the
warrants are required to be recorded at their initial fair value on the date of issuance, and each balance sheet date thereafter. Changes in the estimated fair value
of the warrants that do not meet all the criteria for equity classification are recognized as a non-cash gain or loss on the condensed consolidated statements of
operations. The fair value of the private warrants was estimated using a Black-Scholes model approach (see Note 14).Net (Loss) Income per Common StockThe
Company complies with accounting and disclosure requirements of FASB ASC Topic 260, &€ceEarnings Per Sharea€. Net (loss) income per share of common stock
is computed by dividing net (loss) income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period. (Loss) Income is allocated
between redeemable and non-redeemable shares based on relative amounts of weighted average shares outstanding. Accretion associated with the redeemable
shares of common stock is excluded from (loss) income per share as the redemption value approximates fair value.The calculation of diluted net (loss) income per
share does not consider the effect of the warrants issued and outstanding. For the three months ended September 30, 2024, the calculation excludes the dilutive
impact of warrants because none would be issued under treasury method. The convertible financial instrument and other share obligations were included in the
dilutive calculation under the as converted method, as such the number of shares were included as if the shares were issued on July 1, 2024 and the interest
expense and the change in fair value associated with the financial instruments was adjusted from net income to determine the numerator and denominator.For the
three months ended September 30, 2023, the calculation excludes the dilutive impact of these instruments because the exercise of the warrants were contingent
upon the occurrence of future events and inclusion would be antidilutive. The following table reflects the calculation of basic net income (loss) per share of
common stock (in dollars, _except share amounts):a€<a€<«a€<«a€<«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«Three Months Endeda€<a€<September 30, 20244€<September 30,

20234€<A A A A Non-A A A A 4€4€<A A A A Non-a€<4€<A redeemablea€Redeemabled€ A redeemableBasic net income (loss) per common

stockA &€<A A A 4€<A A A 4€<A A Numerator:A 4€<A A A 4€<A A A a€<A A Allocation of net income, as adjusteda€<$ 10,748,0334€<$ (130,164)a€<$
(125,814)Denominator:a€<A A A 4€<A A A 4€<A A A Basic weighted average common stock outstandingad€<A 15,384,3574€<A 5,205,2174€<A 5,031,250Basic net
income per common stocka€«$ 0.704€<$ (0.03)a€<$ (0.03)a€<«10Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)The following table reflects the calculation of diluted net income (loss) per share of common stock (in
dollars, except share amounts): A€<A€<A€<AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<AE<aE<a€<a€<a€<Three Months Endeda€<a€<September 30,20244€<«September 30,20234€<4€<Non-

A€<A€<A€<a€Non-a€<A A A A redeemableA A A A RedeemableA A A A redeemableDiluted net income (loss) per common
stockA a€<A A A a€<A A A 4€<A A Numerator:A a€<A A A 4€<A A A a€<A A Allocation of net income,a€<$ 10,748,0334€<$ (130,164)a€<$ (125,814)Change in fair value



of financial instrumentsa€<A (12,655,000)a€<A 4€”4€<A &€”Interest on dilutive instrumentsa€<A 1,419,8434€<A 4€”a€<A a€”Allocation of net income, as
adjusteda€<$ (487,124)a€<$ (130,164)a€<$ (125,814)Denominator:a€<A A A 4€<A A A a€<A A A Dilutive weighted average common stock outstandinga€<A
15,384,3574€<A 5,205,2174€<A 5,031,250If converted sharesa€<A 99,180,6934€«A A€"a€<A A€”A€<A€«A 114,565,050a€<A 5,205,2174€<A 5,031,250Diluted net
income (loss) per common stocka€«$(0.00)a€<$ (0.03)a€<$ (0.03)a€<Below is a summary of the dilutive instruments as of September 30, 2024 and

2023: a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Descrlpt10nA A A A September 30, 2024A A A A September 30, 2023Short Term NotesA 49,050,804A a€”Convertible notesA
19,263,975A a€<Secured convertible noteA 26,202,298A &€”Subscription agreementA 2,818,665A &€”Tau agreementA 1,253,514A a€<Stock payablea€«
250,000&€<a€<Promissory notea€« 341,437a€« 4€"Total Shares issuable under Convertible Note obligations &€ if converted total dilutivea€« 99,180,6934€<
4€”7a€<a€<a€«@€<a€<«Public WarrantsA 10,062,500A 10,062,500Private WarrantsA 5,553,125A 6,153,125Secured convertible note warrantsA 600,000A &€”Total
excluded under treasury method 4€“ out of the moneyA 16,215,625A 16,215,6254€<Recent Accounting StandardsManagement does not believe that any other
recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting standards, if currently adopted, would have a material effect on the Companya€™s condensed consolidated
financial statements. NOTEA 3. CASH SEGREGATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FEDERAL REGULATIONSWilson-Davis is required by Rule 15c3-3 of the SEC to
maintain a cash reserve with respect to customersa€™ transactions and credit balances, on a settlement date basis. Such a reserve is computed weekly using a
formula provided by the rule, and the reserve account must be separate from all other bank accounts of Wilson-Davis. The required reserve as of September 30,
2024, was calculated to be $18,830,537. Wilson-Davis had $19,667,586 cash which was $837,049 more than the amount required. On October 1, 2024, Wilson-
Davis withdrew $337,049 from the reserve account in accordance with the rule, which resulted in an excess of $500,000.Wilson-Davis is required by Rule 15c¢3-3 of
the SEC to maintain a cash reserve with respect to broker-dealer transactions and credit balances. Such a reserve is computed weekly using a formula provided by
the rule, and the reserve account must be separate from all other bank accounts of Wilson-Davis. The required reserve as of September 30, 2024, was calculated to
be $100,000. Wilson-Davis had $200,000 cash on deposit in the reserve account, which was $100,000 more than the amount required.11Table of
ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)NOTEA 4. NET
CAPITAL REQUIREMENTSASs a broker-dealer, Wilson-Davis is subject to the uniform net capital rule adopted and administered by the SEC. The rule requires
maintenance of minimum net capital and prohibits a broker-dealer from engaging in securities transactions at a time when its net capital falls below minimum
requirements, as those terms are defined by the rule. Under the alternative method permitted by this rule, net capital shall not be less than the greater of
$250,000 or 2% of aggregate debit items arising from customer transactions, as defined. Also, Wilson-Davis has a minimum requirement based upon the number of
securities markets that it maintains. On September 30, 2024, Wilson-Davisa€™s net capital was $10,449,178, which was $10,199,178 in excess of the minimum
required.NOTE 5 &€“ CASH AND RESTRICTED CASHReconciliation of cash and restricted cash as shown in the condensed statements of cash flows is presented
in the table below: 4€<A€<a€<A€<a€<A€<A A A A For the Three Months 4€<a€<EndedA a€<4€<September 30, 2024Cash and cash equivalentsa€«$ 6,817,398Cash
segregated - customersa€<«A 19,980,711Cash segregated - PABA€<A 768,767Total cash and restricted cash shown in the statement of cash flows.a€<$
27,566,876a€<«4€«NOTE 6 &€“ CUSTOMER RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLESAccounts receivable from and payable to customers at September 30, 2024, include cash
and margin accounts. Securities owned by customers are held as collateral for any unpaid amounts. Such collateral is not reflected in the financial statements. The
Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts, as needed, for accounts in which collection is uncertain. Management periodically evaluates each account
on a case-by-case basis to determine impairment. Accounts that are deemed uncollectible are written off to bad debt expense. Bad debt expense net of bad debt
recoveries and trading error adjustments for the three-month period ended September 30, 2024 was $639 and $15,000 for the transition period ended June 30,
2024.3€<NOTE 7 a€“ PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENTDepreciation expense for the three-month period ended September 30, 2024, was $4,569. The Company
acquired the below on February 9, 2024, in connection with the acquisition of Wilson-Davis, see Note 10 for further detail. Property and equipment are
summarized by major classifications as follows: 4€<AEAEAEAEAEA A A A SeptemberA 30,A 2024Equipmenta€«$ 150,202Leasehold 1mprovementsa€<A
89,087Softwarea€<«A 85,042Furniture and fixturesa€«A 51,7174€<4€<A 376,048Less: Accumulated depreciation and Amortizationd€<A (364,537)a€<a€<$
11,5114€4€NOTEA 8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONSRelated Party Share Issuance/TransfersQuantum Ventures LLC (4€ceQuantum Venturesa€ or the
a€oeSponsora€) and AtlasFinTech transferred 1,558,923 and 991,665 shares, respectively for total contributed shares of 2,550,588 shares recorded as contributed
capital for $2,412,930. The Company recorded contributed capital for the value of the liabilities settled with their personal shareholding. The contributed capital
recognized was $21,299 in interest paid in shares for Promissory Notes, $217,397 in interest paid in shares for Secured Convertible Note, $400,000 of Principal
converted under the Chardan convertible note along with $212,803 in interest paid in shares for the Chardan convertible note, $351,141 in interest paid in shares
for Short and long term Notes and $1,210,290 for payment in shares under the contingent obligation to sellers.12Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS,
INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)On August 9, 2024, the Company entered into a
Satisfaction of Discharge of indebtedness agreement with Atlas FinTech. Pursuant to the agreement the Company issuedA 2,788,276 shares in satisfaction of
$803,860 included in accounts payable. In addition, the Company issuedA 1,337,500 shares as reimbursement for 991,665 shares that were transferred by
AtlasFinTech, as stated above, to satisfy the Company requirements to pay interest on various loans with unrestricted shares. As such a total of 4,125,776 shares of
common stock of the Company, par value $0.0001 per share (the 4€ceCommon Stocka€) were transferred to Atlas FinTech in satisfaction.Advances from Related
PartiesAtlas FinTech, a related party and shareholder, incurred expenditures of $803,860 in connection with the business combination. The amount is included in
account payable and accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2024. On August 9, 2024 the Company issued 2,788,276 shares to Atlas FinTech as full settlement of this
payable as described above.On May 9, 2024, Quantum Ventures, a related party transferred 56,073 shares to pay for the $47,750 of interest in connection with the
short term sellers notes. The shares are to be reissued at a 13% interest rate, as such a payable of $55,087 was accrued.NOTEA 9. NOTES PAYABLE AND
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIESRegistration RightsThe Company filed a registration statement on Form S-1 to register the resale of up to 77,577,099
shares of Common Stock by the selling stockholders named in the registration statement, which became effective on August 14, 2024. The Company will not
receive any of the proceeds from these sales.Business Combination Marketing AgreementIn connection with the Closing on February 9, 2024, the Company and
Chardan agreed that the fee, in the amount of $7,043,750, payable by the Company to Chardan upon the Closing pursuant to the terms of the business
combination marketing agreement entered into in connection with Quantuma€™s initial public offering, would be waived in exchange for the issuance by the
Company to Chardan of a convertible promissory note in the aggregate principal amount of $4,150,000. Such note (the 4€ceOriginal Chardan Notea€) was issued
by the Company at the Closing. Under ASC 815 the conversion feature was bifurcated resulting in a conversion liability of $404,483 at issuance.During the three-
month period ended September 30, 2024, the Company received conversion notices for an aggregate principal amount of $725,000, and received a total of
2,263,031 shares of Common Stock, of which 366,750 were registered shares transferred from Quantum Ventures and 127,159 were registered shares transferred
from Atlas FinTech, (see Note 8 above), and 1,769,122 were newly issued registered shares. During the three-month period ended September 30, 2024, the
Company recognized $137,872 in interest expense on the principal and $86,209 of interest related to the amortization of the debt discount created with the
derivative liability. During the three-month period ended September 30, 2024, Quantum Ventures transferred 145,606 and Atlas fintech transferred 52,590
registered shares to pay for accrued interest of $212,803. As of September 30, 2024, the principal balance on the note is $3,425,000 and $137,872 in accrued
interest net of $280,355 of unamortized debt discount for total carrying balance of $3,282,518. See Note 14 for additional information on the fair value and change
in fair value related to the derivative.The Original Chardan Note had a stated maturity date of February 9, 2028. Interest accrued at a rate per annum equal to
13%, and was payable quarterly on the first day of each calendar quarter. On each interest payment date, the accrued and unpaid interest was to be, at the
election of the Company, either paid in cash or, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, in shares of Common Stock, at a rate equal to 85% of the VWAP for
the trading day immediately prior to the applicable interest payment date. The Chardan Note was convertible, in whole or in part, into shares of Common Stock at
the election of the holder at any time at a conversion price equal to 85% of the VWAP of the Common Stock for the trading day immediately preceding the
applicable conversion date. In addition, on each conversion date the Company was required to pay to Chardan in cash (or, at the Companya€™s option and subject
to certain conditions, a combination of cash and Common Stock) all accrued interest on the Original Chardan Note and all interest that would have otherwise been
accrued on the amount of the Original Chardan Note being converted if such converted amount would be held to three years after the applicable conversion date.
Conversion of the Original Chardan Note, including the issuance of shares to pay interest thereon, was limited to the extent that such conversion would result in
Chardan (together with its affiliates and any other persons acting as a group 13Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)together with Chardan or its affiliates) beneficially owning in excess of 9.99% of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to such conversion. The conversion price applicable to the Original Chardan Note was subject
to customary adjustments for stock dividends, stock splits, reclassifications and the like, and was subject to price-based adjustment, on a a€cefull ratcheta€ basis,
in the event of any issuances of Common Stock, or securities convertible, exercisable or exchangeable for, Common Stock at a price below the then-applicable
conversion price (subject to certain exceptions). The Original Chardan Note was subject to a demand for immediate repayment in cash upon the occurrence of
certain events of default specified therein.Also on February 9, 2024, the Company entered into a registration rights agreement with Chardan (the &4€ceChardan
Registration Rights Agreementa€), pursuant to which the Company agreed, among other things, to file with the SEC within 45 days after the Closing Date a
registration statement registering the resale of the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Original Chardan Note and to use its reasonable best
efforts to have such registration statement declared effective as soon as possible after filing. If the registration statement was not filed within 45 days after the
Closing or was not effective within a specified period after the Closing (or if effectiveness is subsequently suspended or terminated for at least 15 days, subject to
certain exceptions), then the interest rate of the Original Chardan Note increased by 2% for each week that such event continued. The Chardan Registration
Rights Agreement also provided that the Company was obligated to file additional registration statements under certain circumstances, and provided Chardan with
customary a€cepiggybacka€ registration rights.On May 7, 2024, Chardan Capital Markets LLC (a€ceChardana€) filed a complaint in the Court of Chancery of the
State of Delaware in an action entitled Chardan Capital Markets LLC v. AtlasClear Holdings, Inc., C.A. No. 2024-0480-LWW, for alleged breach of contract, breach
of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, and specific performance, alleging that the Company breached the Chardan Registration Rights Agreement,
by failing to file a registration statement with the SEC to permit the public resale of certain registerable securities in an amount sufficient to cover the Original
Chardan Note. Chardan alleged that the Companya€™s failure to file the registration statement left Chardan without the ability to convert and sell shares of the
Companya€™s Common Stock as allowed for under the Original Chardan Note.On October 23, 2024, the Company, Quantum Ventures, Chardan and Chardan
Quantum LLC entered into an agreement pursuant to which they settled the claim referenced above, and any and all related claims (the a€ceSettlement
Agreementa€). In connection with the Settlement Agreement, Chardan exchanged the Original Chardan Note for an amended non-interest bearing, convertible
note in the aggregate principal amount of $5,209,764 (as amended the &€ceChardan Notea€). While the Chardan Note does not bear interest, it can be converted
from time to time by Chardan into shares of Common Stock, on terms substantially similar to the conversion provisions in the Original Chardan Note, and any
remaining outstanding principal is to be repaid in full on the same maturity date as the Original Chardan Note. (see Note 15 Subsequent Events for additional
information).Expense Settlementsa—Carriage House Capital, Inc. 4€“ up to 350,000 shares of Common Stock that were issued, or may become issuable, to
Carriage House Capital, Inc. (a€ceCarriagea€), pursuant to the Consulting Agreement, dated as of February 19, 2024, between Carriage and the Company (the
a€ceCarriage Agreementa€), as partial consideration for consulting services rendered to the Company, at the price per share of $4.98 on the day of issuance. The



total consideration due under the Consulting Agreement is 350,000 shares of Common Stock, 100,007 shares of which were due upon signing of the contract and
27,777 shares of which are due in months four through twelve from the date of signing. On February 9, 2024, 100,000 shares were issued, and were valued at
$4.98 per share as agreed upon consideration. The Stock payable for the remaining 250,000 shares was valued at $1,244,965 and recorded as a stock payable. As
of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 the fair value of the 250,000 stock payable was $63,742 and $259,893, respectively. The shares were valued at the
closing price of the ATCH trading shares on September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 using a level 1 measurements. As a result, the company recognized $196,150
in the change in fair value related to the Stock Payable during the three-months period ended September 30, 2024.4—Interest Solutions, LLC a€“ 144,454 shares
of Common Stock that may become issuable to Interest Solutions, LLC (a€celnterest Solutionsa€), pursuant to a convertible promissory note, dated as of February
9, 2024, in the aggregate principal amount of $275,000 (the 4€ceInterest Solutions Notea€) at a price per share of $2.00. Accrued interest on the Interest Solutions
Note is payable monthly, beginning on June 30, 2024, at a rate of 13% per annum. Until all payments have been made to the Wilson-Davis Sellers, interest on the
Interest Solutions Note may be paid in cash or shares of Common Stock valued at the then-current conversion price. Thereafter, all accrued interest must be paid
in cash. During the three-month period ended September 30, 14Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)2024 the company recognized $9,011 in interest expenses and the Quantum Ventures transferred
4,457 registered shares to pay for $9,011 in accrued interest. As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, there is $288,908 and $288,908 included in Promissory
note payable.d—JonesTrading Institutional Services LLC 4€“ up to 196,983 shares of Common Stock that may become issuable to JonesTrading Institutional
Services LLC (a€oeJonesTradinga€), pursuant to a convertible promissory note, dated as of February 9, 2024, in the aggregate principal amount of $375,000 (the
a€oeJonesTrading Notea€) at a price per share of $2.00. Accrued interest on the JonesTrading Note is payable monthly, beginning on June 30, 2024, at a rate of
13% per annum. Until all payments have been made to the Wilson-Davis Sellers, interest on the Interest Solutions Note may be paid in cash or shares of Common
Stock valued at the then-current conversion price. Thereafter, all accrued interest must be paid in cash. During the three-month period ended September 30, 2024
the Company recognized $12,288 in interest expenses and the Quantum Ventures transferred 6,077 registered shares to pay for $12,288 in accrued interest. As of
September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, there is $393,966 and $393,966 included in Promissory note payable.a—Toppan Merrill LLC a€“ the Company issued to
Toppan Merrill LLC (&€ceToppana€) a promissory note, dated as of February 9, 2024, in the aggregate principal amount of $160,025 (the &€eToppan Notea€). The
maturity date of the Toppan Note is February 8, 2026 and the note accrues interest at a rate of 13% per annum. The principal and interest payments due under the
note is not payable in shares of Common Stock. As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, there was $170,094 and $170,094, respectively, included in
Promissory note payable.d—Winston & Strawn LLP &€“ up to $2,500,000 in shares of Common Stock that may become issuable to Winston & Strawn LLP
(&€ceWinston & Strawna€), pursuant to a subscription agreement, dated as of February 9, 2024, between Winston & Strawn and the Company (the a€ceWinston &
Strawn Agreementd€). Pursuant to the Winston Agreement, the Company may issue $2,500,000 worth of shares of Common Stock as payment for legal services, in
three equal installments of $833,333 beginning on August 9, 2024. As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the amount is included in Subscription agreement
as an liability of $2,460,488 and $2,425,647, respectively. Due to the nature of the settlement terms, the subreption agreement was deemed to be a derivative
liability to the Company as of June 30, 2024 under ASC 480. Change in fair value of the subscription agreement are measured at each reporting period with change
reported in earnings. See valuation approach and further disclosure on Note 15.a—Lead Nectar a€“ up to 12,000 shares of Common Stock that may become
issuable to Lead Nectar in lieu of payment for internet marketing services the fair value of the shares at grant date was $2,578.Secured Convertible Note
FinancingOn February 9, 2024, Wilson-Davis and Quantum entered into a securities purchase agreement (the &€cePurchase Agreementa€) with Funicular Funds,
LP, a Delaware limited partnership (a€ceFuniculara€), pursuant to which the Company sold and issued to Funicular, on that date, a secured convertible promissory
note in the principal amount of $6,000,000 (the 4€ceFunicular Notea€) for a purchase price of $6,000,000, in a private placement (the 4€ceSecured Note
Financinga€). The proceeds raised in the Note Financing were used to pay a portion of the purchase price paid at Closing to the Wilson-Davis Sellers.The Funicular
Note has a stated maturity date of November 9, 2025. Interest accrues at a rate per annum equal to 12.5%, and is payable semi-annually on each June 30 and
December 31. On each interest payment date, the accrued and unpaid interest shall, at the election of the Company in its sole discretion, be either paid in cash or
paid in-kind by increasing the principal amount of the Funicular Note. In the event of an Event of Default (as defined in the Funicular Note), in addition to
Funiculara€™s other rights and remedies, the interest rate would increase to 20% per annum. The Funicular Note is convertible, in whole or in part, into shares of
Common Stock at the election of the holder at any time at an initial conversion price of $10.00 per share (the &€ceConversion Priced€). The Conversion Price is
subject to adjustment monthly to a price equal to the trailing five-day VWAP, subject to a floor of $2.00 per share (provided that if the Company sells stock at an
effective price below $2.00 per share, such floor would be reduced to such effective price), and is subject to customary adjustments for stock dividends, stock
splits, reclassifications and the like. The Company has the right to redeem the Funicular Note upon 30 daysa€™ notice after the earlier of August 7, 2024 and the
effectiveness of the Registration Statement (as defined in the Funicular Note), and Funicular would have the right to require the Company to redeem the Note in
connection with a Change of Control (as defined in the Note), in each case for a price equal to 101% of the outstanding principal amount of the Note plus accrued
and unpaid 15Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30,
2024(Unaudited)interest. The Funicular Note contains covenants which, among other things, limit the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to incur
additional indebtedness, incur additional liens and sell its assets or properties.As a result of the delay in filing the registration statement the Company incurred
$1,500,000 in fees through June 30, 2024 which has been added to the principal of the note. As of June 30, 2024, the Company recognized $328,767 in interest
expense on the principal and $279,032 of interest related to the amortization of the debt discount described above. As of June 30, 2024 the carrying value of the
notes is $6,857,101 net of discount of $971,666.As of September 30, 2024, the company recognized $246,660 in interest expense on the principal and $180,085 of
interest related to the amortization of the debt discount described above. As of September 30, 2024, the carrying value of the notes is $7,066,449, net of discount
of $791,581. During the three month period the Quantum Ventures transferred 368,004 registered shares to pay for accrued interest of $217,373.As a result of the
Companya€™s lack of authorized shares to satisfy its share obligations, the note now falls under ASC 815 and is required to be accounted for at fair value with
change in fair value recorded in the statement of operations. See valuation approach and further disclosure on Note 14. Sellers NoteAs a result of the acquisition
of Wilson-Davis the company issued (i) $5,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of notes due 90 days after the Closing Date (the &€ceShort-Term Notesa€) and (ii)
$7,971,000 in aggregate principal amount of notes due 24 months after the Closing Date (the &€ceLong-Term Notesa€ and, together with the Short-Term Notes,
the a€ceSeller Notesa€). The Short-Term Notes accrue interest at a rate of 9% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears, in shares of Common Stock at a rate equal
to 90% of the trailing seven-trading day VWAP prior to payment (or, at the Companya€™s option, cash), and are convertible at the option of the holder at any time
during the continuance of an event of default, at a rate equal to 90% of the trailing seven-trading day VWAP prior to conversion. The Long-Term Notes accrue
interest at a rate of 13% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears, in shares of Common Stock at a rate equal to 90% of the trailing seven-trading day VWAP prior
to payment (or, at the Companya€™s option, in cash), and are convertible at the option of the holder at any time commencing six months after the Closing Date, at
a rate equal to 90% of the trailing seven-trading day VWAP prior to conversion (or 85% if an event of default occurs and is continuing).During the three-month
ended September 30, 2024, the Company received conversion notice for a total $359,896 in short term loan principal and $7,530 of short term loan interest,
receiving a total of 1,862,116 shares of common stock newly issued registered shares. During the three-months ended September 30, 2024, the company
recognized $158,333 in interest expense on the short-term principal, $259,063 in interest expense on the long-term principal and $99,890 of interest related to the
amortization of the debt discount on long-term loan created with the derivative liability. During the three month period the Quantum Ventures transferred 368,004
registered shares to pay for accrued interest of $92,083 on short-term loan and $259,058 on long-term loan. As of September 30, 2024 the Principal balance on the
short-term loan is $4,640,104 and $150,803 in accrued interest net of $0 of unamortized debt discount for total carrying balance of $4,790,907 in short-term loans.
As of September 30, 2024 the Principal balance on the long-term loan is $7,971,197 and $259,064 in accrued interest net of $521,646 of unamortized debt
discount for total carrying balance of $7,708,615 in long-term loans.Contingent Guaranteeln connection with the acquisition of Wilson-Davis, Founder shares were
transferred to cover a cash deficit of $6,000,000. The share have a make-whole provision that require to be accounted for under ASC 480. The Company has valued
the obligation as of June 30, 2024 of $3,256,863 based on the cash value that would need to be renumerated by the Company. The value of the cash that would be
paid was deemed to be the fair value of the contingent guarantee. The Company analyzed the public sales of the shares transferred to determine the amount of
cash recovered less the $4,000,000 contingent guarantee resulting in a liability due of $3,256,863. As of February 9, 2024 the 885,010 shares transferred by the
Founder were valued at $8,850,100 which was greater than the $4,000,000 guaranteed value as such the value of the guarantee was deemed to be zero on
February 9, 2024. As a result of the decrease in stock prices through June 30, 2024 the Sellers have recovered $743,137 in cash through sales of the shares
transferred resulting in the value of the liability as of June 30, 2024 to be $3,256,863.16Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)During the three-month period ended September 30, 2024, the Atlas FinTech
agreed to transfer 1,234,990 in registered shares to the sellers under the contingent guarantee, resulting in a reduction in the contingent guarantee of $1,210,290
based on the fair value of the shares transferred on the transfer date. On August 9, 2024, the Company entered into an agreement to modify the terms of the
contingent guarantee where the Company agreed to enter into a convertible note on the amount that has not yet been recovered through share issuances of
$2,886,347 plus a 5% convenience fee applied resulting in the Company issuing a convertible note of $3,030,665. This Convertible Promissory Note (this
a€:eMerger Financinga€) is being issued pursuant to that certain Post-Closing Agreement dated effective August 9, 2024 (the a€ceAgreementa€), by and between
the Company and the former stockholders of Wilson-Davis, to address the remaining Gross Proceeds Shortfall that cannot be remedied by the transfer of Additional
Shares. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Stock Purchase Agreement, as defined in the Agreement. The
note was analyzed under ASC 480 and ASC 815, as a result of the Company not having sufficient shares authorized to settled the convertible note, the Merger
Financing note falls under ASC 815. Under ASC 815 the conversion feature was bifurcated resulting in a conversion liability of $113,044 for the Merger Financing
and at issuance. As of September 30, 2024, the Company recognized $56,909 in interest expense on the principal and $10,707 of interest related to the
amortization of the debt discount created with the derivative liability. See Note 14 for additional information on the fair value of the derivative.Tau Agreement -
ELOCOn July 31, 2024, the Company and Tau Investment Partners LLC (d€ceTaud€) entered into an at-the-market agreement (the &€ELOCA&€). Pursuant to the
ELOC, upon the terms of and subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, the Company has the right from time to time at its option to direct Tau to purchase
up to a specified maximum amount of shares of the Common Stock, up to a maximum aggregate purchase price of $10 million (the &€ceAggregate Limita€), over a
24-month term commencing on the date of the ELOC. The Company may request, on dates determined by it, individual advances up to the greater of 100,000
shares or such amount as is equal to 50% of the average daily volume traded of the Common Stock during the 30 trading days immediately prior to the date the
Company requests each advance, subject to the Aggregate Limit. Any such advance will reduce amounts that the Company can request for future advances and
draw downs. The purchase price payable for the shares sold pursuant to any advance will be equal to 97% of the lowest volume weighted average price of the
Common Stock during a pricing period of three consecutive trading days following Taua€™ s receipt of the applicable advance notice. Taud€™s obligation to
purchase the shares the Company requests to sell pursuant to any advance is conditioned upon, in addition to certain other customary closing conditions, the
continued effectiveness of a registration statement pursuant to which Tau may freely sell the shares to be received.The issuance and sale of the shares of Common
Stock pursuant to the ELOC will be exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in accordance with Section 4(a)(2)



thereof. The Company has agreed to file a registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the resale by Tau of at least 10,000,000 shares
of Common Stock (the &€ceCommitment Amounta€).The Company will sell to the Investor the Common Stock at a Purchase Price equal to 97% of the lowest VWAP
of the Common Stock during a pricing period of 3 consecutive trading days commencing on the trading day the Advance Notice is received by the Investor. If the
VWAP on any trading day during a pricing period under is below a minimum price set by the Company in connection with each Advance Notice (the &€0eMAP&£)
then for each such trading day (i) the requested Advance amount shall automatically be reduced by an amount equal to 33% of the original requested Advance
amount and (ii) such day shall not be factored into the determination of the Market Price. The Company analyzed both the Commitment Amount and the
Commitment fee under ASC 480 and ASC 815. The Commitment Amount is classified as a liability and is initially measured at fair value. The Commitment Amount
is subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting period with subsequent changes in fair value recorded in earnings. ASC 815-40-35-8 through 35-9 require
an issuer to reassess the classification of both freestanding equity contracts and embedded equity features at each balance sheet date. If the classification changes
because of events occurring during the reporting period, the instrument is reclassified as of the date of the event that caused the reclassification.17Table of
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the Company will issue to the Investor a fee equal to 1.25% of the Commitment Amount (the &4€ceCommitment Feea€) due in shares upon closing based on the
closing price on the day prior to approval of the S-1. As the Commitment Fee is a variable share obligation within the scope of ASC 480, it must be initially and
subsequently measured at fair value through earnings at each reporting period.When estimating the fair value, the Company has followed the guidance in ASC 820
Fair Value Measurement.As both the Commitment Amount and Commitment Fee were issued in a single transaction and are both remeasured to fair value through
earnings in each subsequent reporting period, the proceeds received should be allocated to each freestanding financial instrument on a relative fair value basis. As
such, as of September 30, 2024 the Company requested advance notices for a total of $441,524 which resulted in approximately 2,310,000 shares to be issued. The
Company recorded the initial fair value of the Commitment Amount at $391,017 and the Commitment Fee at $50,506 for total receivable under the ELOC of
$441,524. The receivable under the Commitment Amount for the advances is $169,084 as of September 30, 2024. The Company then recognized a day one charge
to earning to record the Commitment Amount and the Commitment Fee at fair value at issuance of $575,136 and $74,289 reflecting an initial fair value of
$966,153 for the Commitment Amount and $124,796 for the Commitment Fee liability. Tau sold and settled 1,445,527 of the shares which were issued under the
ELOC resulting in realized sale of $303,001, Tau purchased the shares for $272,440 resulting in a realized gain to the Company of $30,562. As a result, the
Company has a subscription receivable of $154,619 and received $148,382 in cash proceeds under the ELOC. There are 864,473 shares which have not yet been
settled which were fair valued as of September 30, 2024 resulting in a change in the fair value of the Commitment amount of $229,407 and a change in the fair
value of the Commitment fee of $44,848. See Note 14 for additional information regarding the fair value method and related disclosures. See foot Note 14 for
additional disclosures.Indemnification AgreementsOn the Closing Date, in connection with the Closing, the Company entered into indemnification agreements with
each of its directors and executive officers, which provide for indemnification and advancements by the Company of certain expenses and costs under certain
circumstances. The indemnification agreements provide that AtlasClear Holdings will indemnify each of its directors and executive officers against any and all
expenses incurred by that director or executive officer because of his or her status as a director or officer of AtlasClear Holdings, to the fullest extent permitted by
Delaware law, the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and the Amended and Restated Bylaws.Wilson-Davis On February 27, 2018, an extended
hearing panel of the Department of Enforcement of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (4€eFINRA&€), Office of Hearing Officers, issued its decision
ordering fines aggregating $1.47 million for violations of the applicable short sales and anti-money laundering rules. Wilson-Davis appealed the decision to the
National Adjudicatory Council (&4€ceNAC&€). On December 19, 2019, NAC issued its decision ordering that the fines be reduced by $205,000 to an aggregate
$1.265 million. Wilson-Davis made a timely appeal to the SEC to hear the case. Pursuant to FINRA rules, Wilson-Davisa€™ s timely appeal of the decision to the
SEC deferred the effectiveness of the findings and sanctions. Due to the disparity in the range of fines of similar cases, Wilson-Davis believes that the final amount
is not reasonably estimable. Wilson-Davis has booked a contingent liability totaling $100,000, which represents the estimated low end of the possible range of
fines. On December 28, 2023, the SEC issued an Opinion sustaining FINRA4€™s findings of violations against Wilson-Davis. The Opinion set aside the fines FINRA
imposed on Wilson-Davis for the Reg SHO violations and the supervisory and AML violations. The SEC remanded the case to FINRA to reconsider the appropriate
sanctions.&€<«18Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30,
2024(Unaudited)NOTEA 10. ACQUISITION OF WILSON-DAVISPrior to the Closing, AtlasClear and the Company entered into two amendments to the Broker-
Dealer Acquisition Agreement with Wilson-Davis and the then-owners of Wilson-Davis.As a result of the closing of the business combination the Company allocated
the purchase price with the acquisition of Wilson-Davis under the acquisition method of accounting. The final allocation of the purchase consideration for the
Mergers will be determined after the completion of a thorough analysis to determine the fair value of all assets acquired and liabilities assumed, but in no event
later than one year following the completion of the Mergers. During the quarter ended the Company revised the deferred tax liabilities that resulted from the
business combination, thus reducing the goodwill value.As such the allocation of the purchase price is revised as follows:a€<a€<a€<a€«a€«Cash paid to Wilson-Davis
shareholdersA A A A $ 8,092,569Short-term notesa€<A 5,000,000Long-term notesa€<A 7,971,197Value of shares transferred from sponsora€<A 6,000,000Total
consideration paida€<A 27,063,766a€<A€<A€<a€Allocated to:a€<A 4€<Casha€<s$ 11,333,271Cash segregateda€<A 22,000,605Receivablesa€«A 4,065,148Trading
Securities, market valuea€<A 6,875Prepaid Income Taxa€<A 201,125Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilitiesa€<A (28,045,034)Current
portion of lease liabilityd€<A (161,212)Property and equipmenta€<A 23,645Cash deposit BDs and Clearing Organizationsa€<A 3,536,664Operating Lease Right-to-
Use Lease Assetsa€<A 395,0630ther Assetsa€<A 385,058Stock loana€<A (1,431,068)Long-term Lease liabilitya€<A (239,629)Subordinated Borrowinga€<A
(1,950,000)Deferred tax liabilitya€<a€« (3,724,270)Trading Account deposita€<A (100,000)Net assets acquireda€<A 6,296,241Excess of purchase price over net
liabilities assumed before allocation to identifiable intangible assets and goodwilla€<$ 20,767,525a€<The fair value of property and equipment was determined
using the indirect cost approach which utilizes fixed asset record information including historical costs, acquisition dates, and asset descriptions and applying
asset category specific nationally recognized indices to the historical cost of each asset to derive replacement cost new less depreciation. Management has also
made the initial determination that all other assets and liabilities to be acquired are primarily estimated to be stated at their fair values, which approximates their
recorded cost. While a final determination of the value of the identifiable intangibles has not been completed, management has made an 19Table of
ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)initial
determination that approximately $20.77 million of the excess of the purchase price over the net assets acquired should be allocated to identifiable intangible
assets.A€«A€A€<A€ A€ A€ AaEeaeA A A A 3€4€<A A A A Estimateda€<a€«a€<a€<a€«Useful Lifea€<a€<Amounta€«(Years)Customer Lists (a)a€«$ 14,625,000A 12Excess
of purchase pricea€<A 20,767,525A &4€”Goodwilla€<$ 6,142,525A 4€”(a)The Wilson-Davis customer relationships were valued using the Multi-Period Excess
Earnings Method (4€ceMPEEMAa€). The MPEEM reflects the present value of the operating cash flows generated by existing customer relationships after taking
into account the cost to realize the revenue and an appropriate discount rate to reflect the time value and risk associated with the cash flows.Pro Forma Financial
InformationThe unaudited pro forma financial information in the table below summarizes the combined results of Wilson-Davis operations and AtlasClear
Holdingsa€™ operations, as though the acquisition of Wilson-Davis had been completed as of the beginning of fiscal 2023. The pro forma financial information for
the three months ended September 30, 2023 combines our results for these periods with that of AtlasClear Holdingsa€™ results for the three months ended
September 30, 2023.The following table summarizes the unaudited pro forma financial information:a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<«a€<A A A A SeptemberA 30,A 2023Total
revenued€<$ 1,834,164Net lossa€«$ (1,575,799)a€ A€ <a€<a€Weighted average sharesa€<A A A BasicA€<A 11,801,759Net loss per shares:a€<A A A Basica€<$
(0.13)Weighted average sharesa€<A A A Diluteda€<A 11,801,759Net loss per shares:a€<A A A Diluteda€<$ (0.13)a4€<The unaudited pro forma financial information
is presented for informational purposes only and is not indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved if the acquisition and the cost of
financing the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of fiscal 2023. The financial information for the periods presented above includes pro forma adjustments
as follows:a€<4€«a€<a€«a€a€<A A A A SeptemberA 30,A 2023Transaction costa€<«$a€”Amortization of intangiblesa€«$ (307,192)Interest earned on investments held
in trusta€«<$ (722,390)a€<«a€<«NOTE 11. INTANGIBLE ASSETSPacsquare Purchase AgreementPursuant to the transactions contemplated by a letter of intent, on
February 16, 2024, AtlasClear and Pacsquare entered into a Source Code Purchase Agreement and Master Services Agreement (the &€cePacsquare Purchase
Agreementa€), pursuant to which AtlasClear acquired the AtlasClear Platform. Pursuant to the Pacsquare Purchase Agreement, Pacsquare will develop, implement
and launch the AtlasClear Platform and provide maintenance and support services as described in the agreement. The Pacsquare Purchase Agreement 20Table of
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Pacsquare will develop and deliver to AtlasClear the Level 1 equities trading platform and that it will develop and deliver all modules of the clearing platform
within 12 months of signing the Pacsquare Purchase Agreement. AtlasClear owns all the intellectual property relating to the AtlasClear Platform, including the
software and source code. The Pacsquare Purchase Agreement also granted AtlasClear a right of first refusal to any products or services that relate to trading,
settlement, clearance or any other business of AtlasClear that Pacsquare proposes to offer to other persons. The purchase price for the assets was $4.8 million as
follows: (i) $1.9 million, consisting of (A) $100,000 payable in a cash upon delivery of the source code and execution of the Pacsquare Purchase Agreement; (B)
$850,000 payable in shares of Common Stock at a price of $6.00 per share; and (C) $950,000 to be paid in four monthly installments of $237,500, payable in
shares of Common Stock at the price per share on the day of issuance and (ii) $2.7 million to be paid ratably on a module-by-module basis upon delivery and
acceptance of each of the AtlasClear Platform modules. AtlasClear has sole discretion to determine whether any of the foregoing payments will be made in cash or
shares of Common Stock. As of June 30, 2024, the Company has issued 336,000 shares of Common Stock 141,667 of which were valued at $6 per share as per
agreed upon terms and 194,333 valued at $1.50 per share based on the fair value of common stock on March 12, 2024 the date the share were issued to Pacsquare
pursuant to the terms of the Pacsquare Purchase Agreement and paid $500,000 in cash and accrued $85,000 in accounts payable for total carrying value of
$1,726,500. During the three months ended September 30, 2024 the Company issued 500,000 shares valued at $122,300 on issuance date to Pacsquare as
additional consideration towards the AtlasClear platform and accrued and additional $15,000 in accrued invoices received bringing the balance to $1,928,800 as of
September 30, 2024. The AtlasClear platform is not yet in use as such amortization has not yet commenced. The Company anticipates commencing amortization
during the quarter ended December 31, 2024.Intangible Assets of the company at September 30, 2024, are summarized as
follows:a€<a€<a€<«a€«a€«a€«a€<a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«a€«September 30,

20244€<A A A A 4€<4€<4€<A€<A A A A AccumulatedA A A A ImpairmentA A A A 4€<4€<A€<4€<Est useful

lifeA A A A Costa€<Amortizationad€<«ofA Asseta€ Neta€ A€ A€ A€ A€ A€ <AEAE A€ A AEAL«aEa€<at«Goodwilla€Indefinited€«$ 6,142,5258€<$ A€"4€<$ A€”AE<$
6,142,525Pacsquare assets 4€“ Proprietary Software&€<10 yearsa€<A 1,928,8004€<A a€”a€<A 4€"a€<A 1,928,800Customer Listsa€<12 yearsa€A

14,625,000a€<A (781,335)a€<A a€”a€<A 13,843,665Intangible Assetsa€«a€<«a€<$ 22,696,325a€«$ (781,335)a€<$ (17,845,813)a€<$ 21,914,990a€Below is a
summary of the amortization of intangible assets for the next five years:a€<a€<a€<a€<a€«Fiscal YearA A A A AmountJune 30, 20254€<$ 911,558June 30, 20264€<A
1,411,630June 30, 20274€<A 1,411,630June 30, 20284€<A 1,414,970June 30, 20293€<A 1,411,630Thereaftera€«A 9,211,0474€<4€<NOTE 12.
STOCKHOLDERS&€™ DEFICITPreferred Stock 4€” The Company is authorized to issue 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share
with such designations, voting and other rights and preferences as may be determined from time to time by the Companya€™s board of directors. At September
30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, there were no shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding.Common stock a€” The Company is authorized to issue 100,000,000



shares of common stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share. Holders of the Companya€™s common stock are entitled to one vote for each share. At September
30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, there were 22,245,698 and 12,277,759, respectively. As of September 30, 2024 1,029,473 shares of common stock, which are
considered liability under ASC 815, were issued under the Tau agreement as such they are issued but not outstanding. Refer to Note 9 Tau Agreement for further
information. In additional the Company does not currently have sufficient shares authorized to issue shares under various convertible note agreements, see Note 2
Net (loss) income for common stock disclosure for additional detail.21Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024 (Unaudited)The Common Stock commenced trading on the NYSE American LLC (&€0eNYSE&€) under the symbol
4€eATCHAE on February 12, 2024. AtlasClear Holdingsa€™ warrants commenced trading on the over-the-counter market (the &€0eOTC&€) under the symbol
4€eATCH WSA€ on February 12, 2024.4€<NOTEA 13. WARRANTSAs of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, there are 20,125,000 Public Warrants outstanding,
each Public Warrant entitles the holder to purchase one-half of one share of common stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per whole share, that are classified and
accounted for as equity instruments. The Public Warrants are now exercisable.As of September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, there are 6,153,125 Private Warrants
to purchase an equal number of common shares that are outstanding that are classified and accounted for as derivative liabilities. Under this accounting
treatment, the Company is required to measure the fair value of the Private Warrants at the end of each reporting period as well as re-evaluate the treatment of
the Private Warrants and recognize changes in the fair value from the prior period in the Companya€™ s operating results for the current period. NOTEA 14. FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTSFair value is defined as the price that would be received for sale of an asset or paid for transfer of a liability, in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. GAAP establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). These tiers include:a—Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) for
identical instruments in active marketsi%a—Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable
such as quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not activel% anda—Level
3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions, such as valuations derived
from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable.In some circumstances, the inputs used to measure
fair value might be categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those instances, the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the
fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement.22Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)The following table presents information about the Companya€™s
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at September 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024, and indicates the fair value hierarchy of the
valuation inputs the Company utilized to determine such fair value: {46 A€ AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEAEA A A A A€A A A A September 30,A A A A June
30,Descriptiona€«Levela€«20244€20244€<A 4€<A 4€<A A A 4€<A A Liabilities:A A€<A€<A€<A€<A€<A€<AESubscription agreementa€«3a€<$ 2,460,4884€<$
2,425,647Contingent Guaranteea€<«3a€<«$a€”a€«$ 3,256,863Warrant liability 4€“ Private Warrantsa€<«3a€<$61,5314€<$307,656Earnout liabilityA 34€<$
12,638,0004€<$ 12,298,000Convertible notes derivativeA 3a€<$ 2,142,5114€<$ 16,462,690Merger financing derivativea€<3a€<$ 176,239a€4€<a€”Secured
convertible derivativea€<3a€<$ 89,5354€<4€<«4€"Tau agreementA 34€<$ 972,5084€<$ 4€”a€Subscription Agreementa€<«On February 9, 2024, the Registrant entered
into a Subscription Agreement and Discharge Agreement with Winston & Strawn LLP (&€ceWinstona€) Calculator New Pubco, Inc. and Quantum, as described in
Note 9. The Subscription Agreement is considered a variable-share obligation under ASC Topic 480 (a€ceDistinguishing Liabilities from Equitya€). The
Subscription Agreement meets the requirements for classification under ASC 480 and as a result is required to be accounted for as a liability under ASC 480 and is
presented as such on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company will record a change in fair value on each reporting period until settlement in its
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations. See Note 9 for further discussion.The key inputs into the Monte Carlo model for the Subscription Agreement
were as follows:4€<A€A€<A€AEAEAEAEAE@AEA A A A June 30,A A A A June 30,A InputA 2024A 20244€Market price of public sharesa€«$ 0.21a€<$ 1.044€<Equity
volatilitya€<«A 34.4%A A A 26.2%Risk-free ratea€<A 4.01%A A A 5.05%a€<Contingent Guaranteeln connection with the acquisition of Wilson-Davis, Founder
shares were transferred to cover a cash deficit of $6,000,000. The share have a make-whole provision that require to be accounted for under ASC 480. The
Company has valued the obligation as of June 30, 2024 of $3,256,863 based on the cash value that would need to be renumerated by the Company. The value of
the cash that would be paid was deemed to be the fair value of the contingent guarantee. The Company issued shares valued at $1,210,290 during the three
months ended September 30, 2024 and based on the value of shares sold as of August 8, 2024 the Company was obligated to repay $2,886,347 under the
contingent guarantee, resulting in a change in fair value of $839,775. On August 9, 2024 the Company issued convertible note to modify the repayment conditions,
resulting in the extinguishment of the contingent liability and recognizing the fair value of the convertible note agreement referred to as Merger financing, see
Note 9 for further discussion and below.a€<Warrant LiabilityThe Private Warrants were accounted for as liabilities in accordance with ASC 815-40 and are
presented within warrant liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. The warrant liabilities are measured at fair value at inception and on a recurring basis,
with changes in fair value presented within change in fair value of warrant liability in the consolidated statements of operations. See Note 13 for further
discussion.23Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30,
2024(Unaudited)The Private Placement Warrants were, initially and as of the end of each subsequent reporting period, valued using a lattice model, specifically a
Black-Scholes model, which is considered to be a Level 3 fair value measurement. The primary unobservable input utilized in determining the fair value of the
Private Placement Warrants is the expected volatility of the Companya€™ s common stock. The expected volatility of the Companya€™s common stock was
determined based on the implied volatility of the publicly traded Public Warrants.The key inputs into the Black-Scholes model for the Private Warrants were as
follows:A€ A€ <A€ A€ A€ AEAEAEAE@EAA A A]une 30,A A A A June 30,A Inputa€<2024a€<2024A Market price of public sharesa€<$ 0.21a€<$ 1.04a€<Risk-free
ratea€<«A 3.52%A A A 4.27%Dividend yielda€<A 0.00%A A A 0.00%Volatilitya€<A 87.4%A A A 58.7%Exercise pricea€«$ 11.504€<$ 11.50a€<Effective expiration
datea€<A February 20294€<A February 20294€<4€<Earnout LiabilityA€<The Earnout liability was, initially as of February 9, 2024, valued using a Monte Carlo
simulation to determine if and when the revenue hurdles would be achieved. The revenue volatility and revenue to equity correlation was based upon the same
guideline public companies. The Monte Carlo simulation was performed simultaneously on both the share price and revenue to account for the correlation between
revenue and equity.The key inputs into the Monte Carlo model for the Earnout liability were as follows:a€<a€<a€<A€<A€<A€AE<AEAEAEA A A A September

30,A A A A June 30,A Inputa€<20244€<2024A Market price of public sharesa€«$ 0.21a€<$ 1.044€<Revenue volatilitya€<A 15.00%A A A 15.00%Discount factor for
revenued€«A 9.61%A A A 9.69%a€<«Convertible Note DerivativesThe Conversion derivative, associated with Short-term notes, Long-Term notes, and the Original
Chardan Note was accounted for as a liability in accordance with ASC 815-40. The Conversion derivative liability was measured at fair value at inception and on a
recurring basis, with changes in fair value presented within change in fair value of Conversion derivative liability in the consolidated statements of operations. The
Convertible note derivative is made up of the fair value of the embedded conversion option included in the Short-term notes, Long-Term notes, and the Original
Chardan Note with a fair value as of September 30, 2024 of $335,906, $983,529 and $823,076, respectively totaling, $2,142,511 and as of June 30, 2024 of
$4,807,692, $7,664,613 and $3,990,385, respectively totaling, $16,462,690.Short-Term NoteOn February 9, 2024, the Company issued short-term notes to the
former officers and directors of Wilson-Davis. The short-term notes have a conversion feature that qualifies for derivative treatment in accordance with ASC 815-
40. On February 9, 2024, and June 30, 2024, the Company valued the derivatives using a Black-Scholes model which is considered to be a Level 3 fair value
measurement. The conversion feature is deemed to include an embedded derivative that requires bifurcation and separate account. As such, the Company
ascertained the value of the conversion option as if separate from the convertible issuance and appropriately recorded that value as a derivative liability with the
offset being a discount to the note. The discount will be amortized as interest expense over the term of the short-term note(s). The derivative liability will be
revalued at each reporting period with the change being charged to the income statement. The original derivative liability 4€“ for the short term note notes was
valued at $487,329. On June 30, 2024, a Black-Scholes calculation was performed (see below chart) and the value of the fair value of the derivative liability a€“
convertible notes increased $4,320,363 to $4,807,692. The original $487,929 discount was amortized over the 90-day maturity. As of June 30, 2024, the 24Table of
ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)Company did not
repay the short-term notes as such has incurred penalty interest from 9% to 13% until the note is repaid. The note is due on demand but will default on the long
term note date of February 2026. No notice of default has been received. a€<As a result of the changes in stock price, the limitation on authorized shares to comply
with the conversion option, the Company determined that as of September 30, 2024 valuation of the convertible note conversion feature under Black-Scholes was
no longer appropriate as it does not take into account the probability of multiple components. As such as of September 30, 2024 the conversion feature was valued
using Mote Carlo model resulting in the fair value of the conversion option included in the short term loan at $335,906. See Note 9 for additional
information.&€<The key inputs into the Monte-Carlo model for the Conversion derivative as of September 30, 2024 were as

follows:4€ <A€<A€<4€A€<a€<A€A A A A September 30,A InputA 20244€<Market price of public sharesa€<$ 0.214€<Risk-free rate&€<A 4.84%Discount ratea€<A
11.72%Probability of defaulta€<A 22.9%Recovery rated€<A 28.9%Volatilitya€<A 36.7%Effective expiration datea€<A February 20264€<4€<The key inputs into the
Black-Scholes model for the Conversion derivative as of June 30, 2024 were as follows:A€<A€<a€<A€<a€<a€a€<A A A A June 30,4€<Inputa€<2024A Market price of
public sharesa€«$ 1.044€<Risk-free rated€<«A 5.49%Dividend yielda€<A 0.00%VolatilityA€<A 14,643.0%Exercise pricea€«$ 0.99a€Effective expiration
datea€<«a€«May 2024a€<a€<Long-Term NoteOn February 9, 2024, the Company issued long-term notes to the former officers and directors of Wilson-Davis. The
long-term notes have a conversion feature that qualifies for derivative treatment in accordance with ASC 815-40. On February 9, 2024 and June 30, 2024, the
Company valued the derivatives using a Black-Scholes model which is considered to be a Level 3 fair value measurement.The conversion feature is deemed to
include an embedded derivative that required bifurcation and separate accounting. As such, the Company ascertained the value of the conversion option as if
separate from the convertible issuance and appropriately recorded that value as a derivative liability with the offset being a discount to the notes. The discount will
be amortized as interest expense over the term of the notes. The derivative liability will be revalued at each reporting period with the change being charged to
Derivative liability 4€“ convertible notes. The original derivative liability 4€“ for the long term note notes was valued at $776,919. On June 30, 2024, a Black-
Scholes calculation was performed (see below chart) and the value of the fair value of the derivative liability 4€“ convertible notes increased $6,887,694 to
$7,664,613. The original $776,919 discount will be amortized over the maturity.a€<As a result of the changes in stock price, the limitation on authorized shares to
comply with the conversion option, the Company determined that as of September 30, 2024 valuation of the convertible note conversion feature under Black-
Scholes was no longer appropriate as it does not take into account the probability of multiple components. As such as of September 30, 2024 the conversion
feature was valued using Mote Carlo model resulting in the fair value of the conversion option included in the long term loan at $983,529. See Note 9 for
additional information.a€<25Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER
30, 2024(Unaudited)The key inputs into the Monte-Carlo model for the Conversion derivative as of September 30, 2024 were as

follows:a€ A€ A€ <A€<A€<a€<A€A A A A September 30,a€Inputd€<2024A Market price of public sharesa€«$ 0.21a€<Risk-free ratea€<«A 4.84%Discount ratea€<A
11.72%Probability of defaulta€«A 22.9%Recovery ratea€<«a€« 28.9%Volatilitya€<«a€« 36.7%Effective expiration date&€«a€<«February 2026a€<a€<The key inputs into
the Black-Scholes model for the Conversion derivative were as follows:a€<a€<a€<a€<a€a€<a€<A A A A June 30,A InputA 20244€Market price of public sharesa€«$
1.044€Risk-free ratea€<A 4.90%Dividend yielda€<A 0.00%Volatilitya€<A 14,461%Exercise priced€«$ 0.99a€ Effective expiration dated€<A February



2026a€<a€<«Chardan Noteln connection with the Closing, AtlasClear Holdings and Chardan agreed that the fee, in the amount of $7,043,750, payable by Quantum
to Chardan upon the Closing pursuant to the terms of the business combination marketing agreement entered into in connection with Quantuma€™s initial public
offering, would be waived in exchange for the issuance by AtlasClear Holdings to Chardan of the Original Chardan Note in the aggregate principal amount of
$4,150,000. The Original Chardan Note was issued by AtlasClear Holdings at the Closing. The Original Chardan Note had a stated maturity date of February 9,
2028. Interest accrued at a rate per annum equal to 13%, and was payable quarterly on the first day of each calendar quarter. On each interest payment date, the
accrued and unpaid interest would have been, at the election of AtlasClear Holdings, either paid in cash or, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, in
shares of Common Stock, at a rate equal to 85% of the VWAP for the trading day immediately prior to the applicable interest payment date. On October 23, 2024,
the Company, Quantum Ventures, Chardan and Chardan Quantum LLC entered into the Settlement Agreement. In connection with the Settlement Agreement,
Chardan exchanged the Chardan Note for an amended non-interest bearing, convertible note in the aggregate principal amount of $5,209,764 (as amended, the
a€ceChardan Notea€). While the Chardan Note does not bear interest, it can be converted from time to time by Chardan into shares of Common Stock, on terms
substantially similar to the conversion provisions in the Original Chardan Note, and any remaining outstanding principal is to be repaid in full on the same maturity
date as the Original Chardan Note.The Chardan Note qualifies for derivative treatment in accordance with ASC 815-40. On February 9, 2024, the Company valued
the derivatives using a Black-Scholes model which is considered to be a Level 3 fair value measurement. The original derivative liability a€“ for the Chardan Note
was valued at $404,483. On June 30, 2024, a Black-Scholes calculation was performed (see below chart) and the value of the fair value of the derivative liability a€“
convertible notes increased $3,585,901 to $3,990,385. The original $404,483 discount will be amortized over the maturity. See Note 9 for additional information.In
addition, on each conversion date AtlasClear Holdings was required to pay to Chardan in cash (or, at AtlasClear Holdinga€™ s option and subject to certain
conditions, a combination of cash and Common Stock) all accrued interest on the Chardan Note and all interest that would otherwise accrue on the amount of the
Note being converted if such converted amount would be held to three years after the applicable conversion date. The first quarterly interest payment due on the
Chardan Note has not been paid as of the date of this filing.As a result of the changes in stock price, the limitation on authorized shares to comply with the
conversion option, the Company determined that as of September 30, 2024, valuation of the convertible note conversion feature under Black-Scholes was no longer
appropriate as it does not take into account the probability of multiple components. As such, as of September 30, 2024, the conversion 26Table of
ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)feature was
valued using Monte Carlo model resulting in the fair value of the conversion option included in the Chardan Note at $823,076. See Note 9 for additional
information.The key inputs into the Monte-Carlo model for the Conversion derivative as of September 30, 2024 were as

follows:a€ A€ <AE A€ <AEAE<AEA A A A September 30,A Inputa€<2024A Market price of public shares&a€«$ 0.214€<Risk-free ratea€<A 4.36%Discount ratea€<A
7.72%Probability of defaultd€<A 41.2%Recovery rated€<A 47.6%Volatilitya€<A 43.9%Effective expiration datea€<A February 20284€<4€<The key inputs into the
Black-Scholes model for the conversion derivative are as follows:a€<a€<aA€<A€<4€<a€<a€<A A A A June 30,A Inputa€<2024A Market price of public sharesa€«$
1.044€Risk-free ratea€<A 4.52%Dividend yielda€<A 0.00%VolatilityA€<A 166,681.0%Exercise priced€«$ 0.844€<Effective expiration dated€<A February
2028a€<a€<Secured Convertible NoteAs a result of the changes in stock price, the limitation on authorized shares to comply with the conversion option, the
Company determined that as of September 30, 2024 valuation of the secured convertible note conversion feature now was required to be bifurcated under ASC
815 as such the Company fair valued the embedded derivative. As such as of September 30, 2024 the conversion feature was valued using Mote Carlo model
resulting in the fair value of the conversion option included in the Secured Convertible Note at $89,535. See Note 9 for additional information.a€<The key inputs
into the Monte-Carlo model for the Conversion derivative as of September 30, 2024 were as follows:3€<a€<4€<4€<a€a€a€A A A A September

30,A Inputa€<2024A Market price of public shares&a€«$ 0.214€<Risk-free ratea€«A 3.87%Discount ratea€<A 7.84%Probability of defaulta€<A 19.8%Recovery
ratea€<A 47.6%Volatilityd€<A 36.8%Effective expiration datea€<A November 20254€<4€Merger FinancingAs discussed above under Contingent Guarantee, on
August 9, 2024 the Company issued convertible note to modify the repayment conditions, resulting in the extinguishment of the contingent liability and
recognizing the fair value of the convertible note agreement. As a result of the changes in stock price, the limitation on authorized shares to comply with the
conversion option, the Company determined that the merger financing notes conversion feature was required to be bifurcated under ASC 815 as such the
Company fair valued the embedded derivative. As such as of August 9, 2024 the issuance date and as of September 30, 2024 the conversion feature 27Table of
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using Mote Carlo model resulting in the fair value of the conversion option included in the Merger financing notes at $113,044 and $176,239, respectively. See
Note 9 for additional information.a€<The key inputs into the Monte-Carlo model for the Conversion derivative as of September 30, 2024 were as

follows:A€ A€ <A€ A€ <AEAE<AEAEAEBEAAAA September 30, A A A A August 9,A Inputa€<2024a€<2024A Market price of public sharesa€<$ 0.214€<$ 0.274€<Risk-
free rated€<A 4.84%A 4.78%Discount rated€<A 11.72%A 16. 98%Probability of defaulta€<A 23.5%A 25.4%Recovery rated€«A 28.9%A 28.9%Volatilitya€<A
36.7%A 37.2%Effective expiration dated€<A February 2026a€<A February 20264€<4€Tau AgreementAs discussed in Note 9 the Tau Agreement has both a
Commitment Amount and a Commitment fee that requires to be fair valued under ASC 815 and ASC 480, respectively. As such as of July 31, 2024 the issuance
date and as of September 30, 2024 both the Commitment Amount and the Commitment Fee were valued using Mote Carlo model resulting in the fair value of the
Commitment Amount at $966,153 and $892,558, respectively and the Commitment Fee at $124,796 and $79,948, respectively. The key inputs into the Monte-Carlo
model for the Commitment Amount as of issuance date of July 31, 2024, and September 30, 2024 were as

follows:a€ A€ <A€ A€ <AEAE<AE€AEAEAEA A A A September 30,A A A A July 31A Inputa€<20244€<2024A Anticipated Monthly Advance Amountsa€«$ 40,0004€<$
40,0004€<Risk-free rated€«A 3.59%A 4.20%Volatilitya€<A 37.4%A 40.3%Effective expiration datea€<A July 2026a€<A July 20264€<4€<The key inputs into the
Monte-Carlo model for the Commitment Fee as of issuance date of July 31, 2024, and September 30, 2024 were as

follows:A€ A€ <A€ A€ <A€AE<AEAE<AEAEA A A A September 30,A A A A July 31,A Inputa€<20244€<2024A Market price of public sharesa€«$ 0.214€<$ 0.274€<Risk-
free rated€<A 3.59%A 4.20%VolatilityA€<A 37.4%A 40.3%Effective expiration datea€<A July 2026a€<A July 20264€<4€<28Table of ContentsATLASCLEAR
HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)The following table presents the
changes in the fair value of the following:a€<a€<A€<A€<a€ A€ a€<AE<AEA A A A PrivateA A A A Taua€<a€<Placementa€<A Agreementa€4€«Warrantsa€«LiabilityFair
value as of June 30, 20244€<$ 307,6564€<$a€” Initial measurementa€<a€« 4€”a€<a€« 1,090,949Transferred to equitya€<«a€<«a€”a€<«a€« (303,000)Change in valuation
inputs or other assumptionsa€« a€< (246,125)a€« a€< 184,559Fair value as of September 30, 20244€<$ 61,5314€<$

972,5084€ A€ <A€ A€ A€ <AE A€ <AE A€ <a€«Conversiond€«Earnouta€<A A A A DerivativeA A A A LiabilityFair value as of June 30, 20244€<$ 16,462,690A $
12,298,000Change in valuation inputs or other assumptlonsa€<A (14,320, 179)A A 340,000Fair value as of September 30, 20244€<$ 2,142,511A $
12,638,0004€<A€ A€ AEAEAEAEAEBAEAAAA SubscrlptlonA A A A Contingenta€<a€Agreementa€GuaranteeFair value as of June 30, 20244€<$ 2,425,647a€<$
3,256,863Shares issued as partial paymenta€<«A a€”a€<A (1,210,290)Change in valuation inputs or other assumptionsa€<«A 34,841a€<A 839,774Exchanged to
Merger financing notea€«A a€”a€<A (2,886,347)Fair value liability as of September 30, 20244€<$ 2,460,4884€<$

A€”A€<A€<AEAEAEAEAEAEAEAA A A MergerAAAA Secureda€<«a€«Financinga€«Convertiblea€«a€«Derivativea€ DerivativeFair value as of June 30, 20244€<$
4€”a€<$ 4€”Initial measurementa€<A 113,0444€<A a€”Change in valuation inputs or other assumptionsa€<A 63,195a4€<A 89,535Fair value as of September 30,
20244€<$ 176,2394€<$ 89,5354€<There were no transfers between levels during the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023.4€<NOTEA 15.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTSThe Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date up to the date that the condensed
consolidated financial statements were issued. Based upon this review the Company did not identify any subsequent events that would have required adjustment or
disclosure in the condensed consolidated financial statements, other than as described below.Prior to the maturity date of October 13, 2024, FINRA approved a
one-year extension for $1,280,000 in Subordinated notes. The interest rate on the subordinated notes increased from 5% to 8% and the notes mature on October
13, 2025. One of the notes, $20,000, was not renewed and will not be included in the Net Capital calculations. The note will be treated as debt.On October 21,
2024, the Company held a special meeting of stockholders (the a&€ceSpecial Meetinga€) in connection with the 1-for-30 Reverse Stock Split Proposal, 1-for-40
Reverse Stock Split Proposal, 1-for-50 Reverse Stock Split Proposal, 1-for-60 Reverse Stock Split Proposal, and Authorized Share Increase Proposal as defined and
described in the definitive proxy statement filed by the Company with the SEC on October 8, 2024 (the a€ceProxy Statementa€).The proposal to amend the
Companyd€™s amended and restated certificate of incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of Common Stock from 100,000,000 shares to
500,000,000 shares and the number of authorized shares of preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share, from 1,000,000 shares to 25,000,000 shares. As of the
date of this filing the Companya€™s board has not yet filed amended articles to increase the authorized share or approve any split ratio.29Table of
ContentsATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS, INC.NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSEPTEMBER 30, 2024(Unaudited)On October 23,
2024, AtlasClear Holdings, Quantum Ventures, Chardan and Chardan Quantum LLC entered into the Settlement Agreement discussed above. In connection with
the Settlement Agreement, Chardan exchanged the convertible, interest-bearing Original Chardan Note originally issued by the Company on February 9, 2024, in
the aggregate principal amount of $4,150,000 for an amended non-interest bearing, convertible note in the aggregate principal amount of $5,209,764. While the
amended Chardan Note does not bear interest, it can be converted from time to time by Chardan into shares of Common Stock on terms substantially similar to the
conversion provisions in the Original Chardan Note, and any remaining outstanding principal is to be repaid in full on the same maturity date as the Original
Note.In connection with the Settlement Agreement, on October 23, 2024, the Company and Chardan entered into an amendment (the &€ceChardan Amended
RRAA&E) to the registration rights agreement, dated February 9, 2024, pursuant to which the Company agreed, among other things, to file, by December 31, 2024,
a registration statement with the SEC, registering the resale of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Amended Chardan Note. If the resale
registration statement (i) is not filed by December 31, 2024, then the interest rate of the Amended Chardan Note will increase by 2% per annum until the date of
the filing, and shall be prorated for such period until the date of such filing and (ii) is not effective by March 31, 2025, then the interest rate on the Amended
Chardan Note will increase to 19.99% per annum from March 31, 2025 until the date of effectiveness.On November 14, 2024, the Company and Commercial
Bancorp agreed to amend the agreement and plan of merger, dated November 16, 2022 (as amended, the 4€ceBank Acquisition Agreementa€), to extend the
termination date of the Bank Acquisition Agreement from November 16, 2024, to May 14, 2025. Pursuant to the amendment, the parties expect to enter into a new
and mutually agreed agreement for the Company to acquire the shares held by such shareholders of Commercial Bancorp. No Commercial Bancorp shareholder is
required to agree to such amended or new agreement. Failure to enter into a new agreement or amendment to the Bank Acquisition Agreement shall constitute
termination of the Bank Acquisition Agreement without liability. The Company shall issue to the shareholders of Commercial Bancorp, without additional
compensation, 500,000 shares of common stock and the previously issued 40,000 shares to the Commercial Bancorp shareholders shall be cancelled. The shares
have not yet been issued as of the date of filing. 4€<4€<30Table of ContentsITEM 2. MANAGEMENT&€ ™S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS&€<«References in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q (the &€ceQuarterly Reporta€) to a€cewe,a€ a€ceus,a€
a€oceAtlasClear Holdings,a€ or the a€ceCompanya€ refer to AtlasClear Holdings, Inc. References to our &€cemanagementa€ or our d4€cemanagement teama€ refer
to our officers and directors. The following discussion and analysis of the Companya€™s financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction
with the financial statements and the notes thereto contained elsewhere in this Quarterly Report. Certain information contained in the discussion and analysis set
forth below includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Certain defined terms used herein have the meaning ascribed to them in the



notes to the financial statements.&€<Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements&€<This Quarterly Report includes &€ceforward-looking statementsa€
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the &€ceSecurities Acta€) and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the &€ceExchange Actd€) that are not historical facts and involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
expected and projected. All statements, other than statements of historical fact included in this Quarterly Report including, without limitation, statements in this
a€oceManagementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsa€ regarding the Companya€ ™s financial position, business
strategy, plans and objectives of management for future operations, including the expectation to enter into a new or amended agreement for the acquisition of
Commercial Bancorp, are forward-looking statements. Words such as d€meexpect,a€ a€cebelieve,a€ a€oeanticipate,a€ a€ceintend,a€ d€ceestimate,a€ a€ceseeka€
and variations and similar words and expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements relate to future
events or future performance, but reflect managementa€™s current beliefs, based on information currently available. A number of factors could cause actual
events, performance or results to differ materially from the events, performance and results discussed in the forward-looking statements. a€<Forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of performance, and the absence of these words does not mean that a statement is not forward looking. You should understand that
the following important factors could affect our future results, and could cause those results or other outcomes to differ materially from those expressed or implied
in the forward-looking statements herein:a€<a—our ability to realize the benefits expected from the Business Combination (as defined herein);a—our ability to
successfully negotiate a new amendment or agreement on acceptable terms to the Company and to complete the acquisition of Commercial Bancorp of Wyoming
(&€ceCommercial Bancorpa€);a—our ability to successfully integrate our recent and proposed acquisitions, including the acquisition of Commercial Bancorp, and to
realize the synergies and benefits of such acquisitions;a—our ability to successfully implement the AtlasClear Platform (as defined herein);a—our significant
indebtedness and our ability to service such indebtedness;a—the volatility of the price of our common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the &€ceCommon
Stocka€) and the possibility that stockholders could incur substantial losses;a—potential dilution of our stockholder interests resulting from our issuance of equity
securities;a—the ability to maintain the listing of our Common Stock on the NYSE American LLC (4€eNYSE&€), and the potential liquidity and trading of such
securities;a—our ability to grow and manage growth profitably;a—our ability to raise financing in the future, if and when needed;a—our success in retaining or
recruiting, or adapting to changes in, our officers, key employees, or directors following the Business Combination;a—our ability to attract and retain our senior
management and other highly qualified personnel;a—our ability to achieve or maintain profitability;a—the period over which we anticipate our existing cash and
cash equivalents will be sufficient to fund our operating expenses and capital expenditure requirements;a—our ability to successfully protect against cybersecurity
attacks or breaches, ransomware attacks, and other disruptions to our information technology structure;a—our ability to successfully compete against other
companies;a—our estimates regarding expenses, future revenue, and needs for additional financing; anda—the effect of economic downturns and political and
market conditions beyond our control.a€<For information identifying important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in
the forward-looking statements, please refer to the Risk Factors section of the Companya€™s Transition Report on Form 10-KT for the transition period 31Table of
Contentsended June 30, 2024 (the d€meTransition Reporta€) filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the &4€0eSECa€) on October 16, 2024. Except
as expressly required by applicable securities law, the Company disclaims any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements whether
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.a€<Overviewa€<«Our goal is to build a cutting-edge technology enabled financial services firm that would
create a more efficient platform for trading, clearing, settlement and banking, with evolving and innovative financial products that focus on financial services
firms. We are a fintech driven business-to-business platform that expects to power innovation in fintech, investing, underwriting and trading. We believe we are
positioned to provide a modern, mission-critical suite of solutions to our clients, enabling them to reduce their transactions costs and compete more effectively in
their businesses.a€<«Our target client base for our prime banking and prime brokerage services includes financial services firms, generally with annual revenues up
to $1 billion, including brokerage firms, hedge funds, pension plans, and family offices that are not adequately served by todaya€™s larger correspondent clearing
firms and banks.d€<Through the acquisition of Wilson-Davis & Co., Inc. (4€ceWilson-Davisa€), a correspondent clearing company, and the anticipated merger with
Commercial Bancorp, we expect to acquire the capabilities to provide specialized clearing and banking services to financial services firms, with an emphasis on
global markets currently underserviced by larger vendors. Once properly integrated, anticipated synergies between Commercial Bancorp, if acquired, and Wilson-
Davis are expected to allow for lower cost of capital, higher net interest margins, expanded product development and greater credit extension.a€<In addition, we
believe the acquisition of a proprietary trading platform with clearing and settlement capabilities that will be developed by Pacsquare, including the AtlasClear
Platform, along with the software products and intellectual property assets acquired from Atlas FinTech and Atlas Financial Technologies Corp., are cutting-edge,
flexible and scalable.a€«Wilson-Davisa€<Wilson-Davis is a self-clearing correspondent securities broker-dealer registered with the SEC, licensed in 50 states,
District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico, and is a member in good standing of FINRA. Wilson-Davis derives revenue principally from commissions charged on the
liquidation of restricted and control microcap securities, vetting, and clearing service fees charged to introducing brokers for which Wilson-Davis clears
transactions on a fully disclosed basis, and other financial service fees. Commissions are earned by executing transactions for customers. Vetting fee revenues are
earned when Wilson-Davis vests stock the customers want to bring into their accounts. Clearing fees are earned by clearing transactions for Glendale Securities,
as introducing broker on a fully disclosed basis, pursuant to a clearing agreement with Glendale Securities.a€<«Key Factors Impacting Wilson-Davisa€™
Businessa€«Wilson-Davisa€™ business and results of operations have been, and will continue to be, affected by numerous factors and trends, which Wilson-Davis
believes include those discussed in the section titled a€ceRisk Factorsa€ of the Transition Report. Some key factors impacting Wilson-Davisa€™ business
include:a€<a—Liquidity. As a clearing broker-dealer in the U.S., Wilson-Davis is subject to cash deposit requirements with clearing organizations, brokers, and
banks that may be large in relation to its total liquid assets.a—Growth of Customer Base. Wilson-Davisa€™ growth requires continued use of its services by new
customers.a—Expanding Wilson-Davisa€™ Relationship with Existing Customers. Wilson-Davisa€™ ability to expand its relationship with its existing customers will
be an important contributor to its long-term growth.a—Market Trends. As financial markets grow and contract, Wilson-Davisa€™ customersa€™ behaviors are
affected. Wilson-Davisa€™ revenue and profitability can be affected by general downturns in the securities markets, resulting from factors such as increased
inflation, increased interest rates and other factors.Business Combinationa€<On February 9, 2024 (the a€ceClosing Datea€), the Company consummated the
previously announced transactions pursuant to that certain business combination agreement, dated November 16, 2022 (as amended, the &€ceBusiness
Combination Agreementa€), by and among the Company, Quantum FinTech Acquisition Corporation (d4€ceQuantuméa€), Calculator Merger Sub 1, Inc., Calculator
Merger Sub 2, Inc., AtlasClear, Inc. (a€aeAtlasCleara€), Atlas FinTech Holdings Corp., (a€ceAtlas FinTecha€) and Robert McBey. The transactions consummated
32Table of Contentsas a result of the Business Combination Agreement are hereinafter referred to as the a€ceBusiness Combination.a€ For more information about
the Business Combination, see Note 1.a€<Amendments to Broker-Dealer Acquisition Agreementa€«Prior to the Closing, AtlasClear and AltasClear Holdings entered
into two amendments to the Broker-Dealer Acquisition Agreement (as defined in the with Wilson-Davis and the then-owners of Wilson-Davis (the &€ceWilson-Davis
Sellersa€), Amendment No. 8 dated January 9, 2024 (a€ccAmendment No. 83€) and Amendment No. 9 dated February 7, 2024 (&€ceAmendment No. 9&€ and,
together with Amendment No. 8, the 4€ceAmendmentsa€). Among other things, the Amendments reduced the total purchase price payable under the Broker-
Dealer Acquisition Agreement by $5 million and reduced the cash payable at the Wilson-Davis Closing as part of the purchase price to $8 million, with the balance
of the purchase price paid in the form of convertible promissory notes issued by AtlasClear to the Wilson-Davis Sellers, as follows: (i) $5,000,000 in aggregate
principal amount of notes due 90 days after the Closing Date (the a&€ceShort-Term Notesa€) and (ii) $7,971,000 in aggregate principal amount of notes due 24
months after the Closing Date (the &€ceLong-Term Notesa€ and, together with the Short-Term Notes, the d€aeSeller Notesa€). The Short-Term Notes accrue
interest at a rate of 9% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears, in shares of Common Stock at a rate equal to 90% of the trailing seven-trading day VWAP prior to
payment (or, at the Companya€™s option, cash), and are convertible at the option of the holder at any time during the continuance of an event of default, at a rate
equal to 90% of the trailing seven-trading day VWAP prior to conversion. The Long-Term Notes accrue interest at a rate of 13% per annum, payable quarterly in
arrears, in shares of Common Stock at a rate equal to 90% of the trailing seven-trading day VWAP prior to payment (or, at the Companya€™s option, in cash), and
are convertible at the option of the holder at any time commencing six months after the Closing Date, at a rate equal to 90% of the trailing seven-trading day
VWAP prior to conversion (or 85% if an event of default occurs and is continuing). &€<For more information about the Amendments to Broker-Dealer Acquisition
Agreement, see Note 9 under Sellers Note and Contingent Guarantee.a€<Convertible Note Financinga€<On February 9, 2024, AtlasClear Holdings and Quantum
entered into a securities purchase agreement (the a€ceFunicular Purchase Agreementd€) with Funicular, pursuant to which AtlasClear Holdings sold and issued to
Funicular, on that date, a secured convertible promissory note (the &€ceFunicular Notea€) in the principal amount of $6,000,000 for a purchase price of
$6,000,000, in a private placement (the &€eNote Financinga€). The proceeds raised in the Note Financing were used to pay a portion of the purchase price paid at
Closing to the Wilson-Davis sellers. The Funicular Note has a stated maturity date of November 9, 2025. Interest accrues at a rate per annum equal to 12.5%, and
is payable semi-annually on each June 30 and December 31. On each interest payment date, the accrued and unpaid interest shall, at the election of the Company
in its sole discretion, be either paid in cash or paid in-kind by increasing the principal amount of the Funicular Note. In the event of an Event of Default (as defined
in the Funicular Note), in addition to Funiculara€™s other rights and remedies, the interest rate would increase to 20% per annum. The Funicular Note is
convertible, in whole or in part, into shares of Common Stock at the election of the holder at any time at an initial conversion price of $10.00 per share (the
a€oeConversion Pricea€). The Conversion Price is subject to adjustment monthly to a price equal to the trailing five-day VWAP, subject to a floor of $2.00 per share
(provided that if the Company sells stock at an effective price below $2.00 per share, such floor would be reduced to such effective price), and is subject to
customary adjustments for stock dividends, stock splits, reclassifications and the like. The Company had the right to redeem the Funicular Note upon 30 daysa€™
notice after the earlier of August 7, 2024 and the effectiveness of the Registration Statement (as defined in the Funicular Note), and Funicular would have the
right to require the Company to redeem the Note in connection with a Change of Control (as defined in the Note), in each case for a price equal to 101% of the
outstanding principal amount of the Note plus accrued and unpaid interest. As a result of the delay in filing the registration statement the Company incurred
$1,500,000 in fees through June 30, 2024 which has been added to the principal of the note. As of June 30, 2024, the Company recognized $328,767 in interest
expense on the principal and $279,032 of interest related to the amortization of the debt discount described above. As of June 30, 2024 the carrying value of the
notes is $6,857,101 net of discount of $971,666. a€<As of September 30, 2024, the company recognized $246,660 in interest expense on the principal and
$180,085 of interest related to the amortization of the debt discount described above. As of September 30, 2024, the carrying value of the notes is $7,066,449, net
of discount of $791,581. During the three month period the Quantum Ventures transferred 368,004 registered shares to pay for accrued interest of
$217,373.4€<For more information about the Note Financing, see Notes 9 and 14 under Secured Convertible Note.a€<33Table of ContentsPacsquare Purchase
AgreementPursuant to the transactions contemplated by a letter of intent, on February 16, 2024, AtlasClear and Pacsquare entered into a Source Code Purchase
Agreement and Master Services Agreement (the &€ePacsquare Purchase Agreementa€), pursuant to which AtlasClear acquired the AtlasClear Platform. Pursuant
to the Pacsquare Purchase Agreement, Pacsquare will develop, implement and launch the AtlasClear Platform and provide maintenance and support services as
described in the agreement. The Pacsquare Purchase Agreement provides that Pacsquare will develop and deliver to AtlasClear the Level 1 equities trading
platform and that it will develop and deliver all modules of the clearing platform within 12 months of signing the Pacsquare Purchase Agreement. AtlasClear owns
all the intellectual property relating to the AtlasClear Platform, including the software and source code. The Pacsquare Purchase Agreement also granted
AtlasClear a right of first refusal to any products or services that relate to trading, settlement, clearance or any other business of AtlasClear that Pacsquare



proposes to offer to other persons. The purchase price for the assets was $4.8 million as follows: (i) $1.9 million, consisting of (A) $100,000 payable in a cash upon
delivery of the source code and execution of the Pacsquare Purchase Agreement; (B) $850,000 payable in shares of Common Stock at a price of $6.00 per share;
and (C) $950,000 to be paid in four monthly installments of $237,500, payable in shares of Common Stock at the price per share on the day of issuance and (ii)
$2.7 million to be paid ratably on a module-by-module basis upon delivery and acceptance of each of the AtlasClear Platform modules. AtlasClear has sole
discretion to determine whether any of the foregoing payments will be made in cash or shares of Common Stock. The Company has issued 336,000 shares of
Common Stock to Pacsquare pursuant to the terms of the Pacsquare Purchase Agreement at a price of $3.32 per share in satisfaction of a total cash amount of
$1,150,000. Of the remaining purchase price, $950,000 is payable in four monthly installments of $237,500 in cash or shares of Common Stock at the price per
share on the day of issuance, as source code is provided; and $2.7 million is payable on a module-by-module basis at the price per share on the day of issuance.For
more information about the Pacsquare Purchase Agreement, see Note 11 - Intangible Assets.Amendment to Bank Acquisition AgreementOn February 26, 2024,
AtlasClear and Commercial Bancorp entered into an amendment (the d€ceFirst Amendmenta€) to the Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated
as of November 16, 2022, by and between AtlasClear and Commercial Bancorp (the &€ceBank Acquisition Agreementa€), pursuant to which, among other things,
Commercial Bancorp is expected to merge with and into a subsidiary of AtlasClear. Pursuant to the Amendment, Commercial Bancorp received 40,000 shares of
Common Stock in lieu of a nonrefundable escrow deposit. On November 14, 2024, the Company and Commercial Bancorp agreed to amend the Bank Acquisition
Agreement (as amended, the &€ceSecond Amendmenta€), to extend the termination date of the Bank Acquisition Agreement from November 16, 2024, to May 14,
2025. Pursuant to the Second Amendment, the parties expect to enter into a new agreement for the Company to acquire the shares held by such shareholders of
Commercial Bancorp. No Commercial Bancorp shareholder is required to agree to such amended or new agreement. Failure to enter into a new agreement or
amendment to the Bank Acquisition Agreement will constitute termination of the Bank Acquisition Agreement without liability. Pursuant to the Second
Amendment, the Company will issue to the shareholders of Commercial Bancorp, without additional compensation, 500,000 shares of common stock and the
previously issued 40,000 shares to the Commercial Bancorp shareholders will be cancelled. The shares have not yet been issued as of the date of this
filing.Chardan Settlementsa€<In connection with the Closing, AtlasClear Holdings and Chardan agreed that the fee, in the amount of $7,043,750, payable by
Quantum to Chardan upon the Closing pursuant to the terms of the business combination marketing agreement entered into in connection with Quantuma€™s
initial public offering, would be waived in exchange for the issuance by AtlasClear Holdings to Chardan of a convertible promissory note in the aggregate principal
amount of $4,150,000 (the a€ceOriginal Chardan Notea€). The Original Chardan Note was issued by AtlasClear Holdings at the Closing. The Original Chardan
Note had a stated maturity date of February 9, 2028. Interest under the Original Chardan Note accrued at a rate per annum equal to 13%, and was payable
quarterly on the first day of each calendar quarter. On each interest payment date, the accrued and unpaid interest could have been, at the election of AtlasClear
Holdings, either paid in cash or, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, in shares of Common Stock, at a rate equal to 85% of the VWAP for the trading
day immediately prior to the applicable interest payment date. The Original Chardan Note was convertible, in whole or in part, into shares of Common Stock at the
election of the holder at any time at a conversion price equal to 90% of the VWAP of the Common Stock for the trading day immediately preceding the applicable
conversion date. In addition, on each conversion date AtlasClear Holdings was required to pay to Chardan in cash (or, at AtlasClear Holdingsa€™ option and
subject to certain conditions, a combination of cash and Common Stock) all accrued interest on the Original Chardan Note and all interest that would otherwise
accrue on the amount of the Original Chardan Note being converted if such converted amount would be held to three years after the applicable conversion
date.34Table of Contentsa€<On October 23, 2024, the Company, Quantum Ventures, Chardan and Chardan Quantum LLC entered the Settlement Agreement (as
defined herein). In connection with the Settlement Agreement, Chardan exchanged the Original Chardan Note for an amended non-interest bearing, convertible
note in the aggregate principal amount of $5,209,764 (as amended, the &€ceChardan Notea€). While the Chardan Note does not bear interest, it can be converted
from time to time by Chardan into shares of Common Stock, on terms substantially similar to the conversion provisions in the Original Chardan Note, and any
remaining outstanding principal is to be repaid in full on the same maturity date as the Original Chardan Note.a€<In connection with the Settlement Agreement, on
October 23, 2024, the Company and Chardan entered into an amendment (the &€ceChardan Amended RRA&€) to the registration rights agreement, dated February
9, 2024, pursuant to which the Company agreed, among other things, to file, by December 31, 2024, a registration statement with the SEC, registering the resale
of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Amended Chardan Note. If the resale registration statement (i) is not filed by December 31, 2024, then
the interest rate of the Amended Chardan Note will increase by 2% per annum until the date of the filing, and shall be prorated for such period until the date of
such filing and (ii) is not effective by March 31, 2025, then the interest rate on the Amended Chardan Note will increase to 19.99% per annum from March 31,
2025 until the date of effectiveness.a€<«For more information about the Chardan Note, see Note 9, Note 14 and Note 15.4€<Additional Settlementsa€«The Company
entered into the following settlements for certain accrued expenses and other obligations to third parties through the issuance of Common Stock and/or
convertible promissory notes. Some of the ongoing obligations of the Company pursuant to such settlements are as follows:4€<a—Carriage House

Capital,A Inc.A &€“ up to 350,000 shares of Common Stock that were issued, or may become issuable, to Carriage House Capital, Inc. (4€ceCarriagea€), pursuant
to the Consulting Agreement, dated as of February 19, 2024, between Carriage and the Company (the a€ceCarriage Agreementa€), as partial consideration for
consulting services rendered to the Company, at the price per share of $4.41 on the day of issuance. The total consideration due under the Consulting Agreement
is 350,000 shares of Common Stock, 100,007 shares of which were due upon signing of the contract and 27,777 shares of which are due inA months four through
twelve from the date of signing.a—Interest Solutions, LLC a€“ up to 144,454 shares of Common Stock that may become issuable to Interest Solutions, LLC
(a€eInterest Solutionsa€), pursuant to a convertible promissory note, dated as of February 9, 2024, in the aggregate principal amount of $275,000 (the
a€celInterest Solutions Notea€) at a price per share of $2.00. Accrued interest on the Interest Solutions Note is payable monthly, beginning on June 30, 2024, at a
rate of 13% per annum. Until all payments have been made to the Wilson-Davis Sellers, interest on the Interest Solutions Note may be paid in cash or shares of
Common Stock valued at the then-current conversion price. Thereafter, all accrued interest must be paid in cash.a—JonesTrading Institutional Services LLC a€“ up
to 196,983 shares of Common Stock that may become issuable to JonesTrading Institutional Services LLC (a€ceJonesTradinga€), pursuant to a convertible
promissory note, dated as of February 9, 2024, in the aggregate principal amount of $375,000 (the d&€meJonesTrading Noted€) at a price per share of $2.00.
Accrued interest on the JonesTrading Note is payable monthly, beginning on June 30, 2024, at a rate of 13% per annum. Until all payments have been made to the
Wilson-Davis Sellers, interest on the Interest Solutions Note may be paid in cash or shares of Common Stock valued at the then-current conversion price.
Thereafter, all accrued interest must be paid in cash.a—Winston & Strawn LLP a€“ up to $2,500,000 in shares of Common Stock that may become issuable to
Winston & Strawn LLP (a€ceWinston & Strawna€), pursuant to a subscription agreement, dated as of February 9, 2024, between Winston & Strawn and the
Company (the &€ceWinston & Strawn Agreementa€) at a 5 day VWAP on date of issuance. Pursuant to the Winston Agreement, the Company may issue $2,500,000
worth of shares of Common Stock as payment for legal services, in three equal installments of $833,333 beginning on August 9, 2024.4—Toppan Merrill LLC a€“
the Company issued to Toppan Merrill LLC (a€ceToppana€) a promissory note, dated as of February 9, 2024, in the aggregate principal amount of $160,025 (the
a€eToppan Notea€). The maturity date of the Toppan Note is February 35Table of Contents8, 2026 and the note accrues interest at a rate of 13% per annum. The
principal and interest payments due under the note is not payable in shares of Common Stock.d—Lead Nectar 4€“ On August 29, 2024, 12,000 shares of Common
Stock were issued to Lead Nectar in lieu of payment for internet marketing services in the amount of $20,000.a—Atlas FinTech a€“ 2,788,276 shares of Common
Stock that were issued to Atlas FinTech pursuant to a Satisfaction and Discharge of Indebtedness Agreement, dated as of August 9, 2024, between Atlas FinTech
and the Company (the &€ceAtlas FinTech Agreementa€), in lieu of payment of $803,860 of expenses that were paid by Atlas FinTech in connection with a previous
proposed business combination of Quantum.For more information about each of the above settlements, see Note 9.36Table of ContentsResults of
OperationsComparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2024 Compared to the Three Months Ended September 30, 2023The Company did not have
operations until the acquisition of Wilson-Davis in connection with the Business Combination which closed on February 9, 2024. Therefore, the period-to-period
comparison below primarily reflects financial results of Wilson-Davis since February 9, 2024.3€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<Three Months

Endeda€<A three Monthsa€<«a€<«September

30,4€<A Endeda€<A A A A 2024A A A A 2023A A A A Changesa€ a€<a€<a€a€<A€<A€A€<A€AEREVENUESA a€<A A A 4€<A A 4€<A A A Commissions&€«<$
1,383,828a€<$ a€”a€<«a€« 1,383 ,828Vetting feesa€«A 365,383a€<A 4€”a€<A 365, 383C16ar1ng feesa€«A 1,047,7124€<A a€”a€<A 1,047,712Net gam/(loss) on firm
trading accountsa€<«A 1,7114€<A 4€”a€<A 1,7110ther revenued€<A 5,448a€<A a€”a€<A 5,448TOTAL REVENUESA€<A 2,804,082a€<A a4€”a€<A

2,804,0824€ A€ A€ A€ AE<AEAEAEAEAEEXPENSESAE<A A A 4€<A A A 4€<A A A Compensation, payroll taxes and benefitsa€<A 1,279,3044€<A 4€”a€<A
1,279,304Data processing and clearing costsa€<A 611,6464€<A 4€”4€<A 611,646Regulatory, professional fees and related expensesa€<A 1,095,8194€<A
640,8134€<A 455,006Communicationsa€<«A 152,7544€<A a€”a€<A 152,7540ccupancy and equipmenta€<A 54,0044€<A &4€”a€<A 54,004Transfer feesa€<A
51,5904€<A a€”4€<A 51,590Bank chargesa€<A 55,9014€<A a€”a€<A 55,901Intangible assets amortizationa€<A 307,1914€<A a€”a€<A 307,1910thera€<A
136,975a€<A 4€”4€<A 136,975TOTAL EXPENSESa€<A 3,745,1844€<A 640,8134€<A 3,104,3714€<4€<A 4€A€<A a€<4€<A 4€<LOSS FROM OPERATIONSA€ A€«
(941, 102)a€<a€< (640, 813)a€<a€< (300,289)a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€<a€a€<a€<«a€<«0OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE)a€<A A A a€<A A A a€<A A A Interest incomea€<A
606,758a€<A 722,390a€<A (115, 632)Change in fair value of warrant liability derivativea€<«A 246,125a€<A (184,594)a€A 430, 719Change in fair value, convertible
note derivatived€<A 3,167,3094€<A 4€”4€<A 3,167, 309Change in fair value, long-term and short-term note derivatived€<A 11,152,870)a€<A 4€”a€<A
11,152,870Change in fair value of contingent guaranteea€<A (839,775)a€<A a€”a€<A (839,775)Change in fair value of non-redemption agreementa€<a€«
4€”A€<4€< (11,759)a€<4€<11,759Change in fair value of secured convertible notea€<A (89,535)a€<A a4€”a€<A (89,535)Change in fair value of Merger
financinga€<A (63,195)a€<A &4€”4€<A (63,195)Change in fair value of earnout liability4€<4€< (340,000)a€<a€< 4€”a€<4€< (340,000)Change in fair value of
subscription agreementa€<A (34,841)a€<A a€”a€<«A (34,841)Change in fair value stock payablea€<A 196,150a€<A 4€”a€<A 196,150Change in fair value of Tau
agreementa€«a€« (833,983)a€ A€« A€”a€<A€« (833,983)Interest expensed€<«A (1,456,996)a€<A a4€”a€<A (1,456,996)TOTAL OTHER
INCOME/(EXPENSE)a€<€<11,710,8874€<4€<526,0374€<A€< 11,184,850a€ A€ A€ A€ <AEAEAEAEAEAEIncome before provision for income taxesa€<A
10,769,7854€<A (114,776)a€<A 10,884,561Benefit (provision) for income taxesa€<a€« (21,752)4€<a€« (141,202)4€<4€< 119,450Net income (loss)a€«$
10,748,033a€<$ (255,978)a€<a€<« 11,004,011a€<«Revenues of $2,804,082 for the three months ended September 30, 2024, represent a 100% increase from revenues
of $0 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2023. Wilson-Davis is a self-clearing correspondent securities broker-dealer registered with the SEC and a
member in good standing of FINRA. Wilson-Davis is engaged principally in the over-the-counter, or 4€eOTC,a€ markets in microcap 37Table of
Contentssecurities. Microcap securities generally are issued by companies with low or 4€cemicroa€ capitalizations, meaning the total market capitalization value of
the companya€™s stock is less than $250 million, which includes low-priced securities, or penny stocks, that trade for less than $5.00 per share and have a market
capitalization of less than $50 million. Wilson-Davis also executes transactions in exchange-traded securities. It derives its revenue from the liquidation of
restricted and control microcap securities; clearing transactions on behalf of an introducing broker-dealer on a fully disclosed basis; and trading in equity
securities for its own account. It receives limited revenues from fully paid stock lending and margin accounts. During its history, Wilson-Davis has underwritten at-
the-market offerings for publicly traded companies, placed private offerings, sold mutual funds, introduced margin accounts cleared by other firms on a fully
disclosed basis, and provided ancillary financial services.Total expenses of $3,782,966 for the three months ended September 30, 2024, represent a significant
increase of $3,142,153 from total expenses for the three-month period ended September 30, 2023. The increase was primarily due to the operations for Wilson-



Davis; the prior period the Company was non-operational. Compensation, payroll taxes and benefits increased to $1,279,304 for the three-month period ended
September 30, 2024. No expense was recorded in the three-month period ended September 30, 2023. The increase was due to compensation, payroll taxes and
benefits related to Wilson-Davis; the prior period the Company was non-operational.Data processing and clearing costs increased to $611,646 for the three-month
period ended September 30, 2024. No expense was recorded in the three-month period ended September 30, 2023. The increase was due to data processing and
clearing cost related to Wilson-Davis; the prior period the Company was non-operational.Regulatory, professional fees and related expenses increased to
$1,133,600 for the three months ended September 30, 2024. No expense was recorded in the three-month period ended September 30, 2023. The increase was
primarily due to the operations for Wilson-Davis, the prior period the Company was non-operational.Intangible asset amortization increased $307,192 for the
three-month period ended September 30, 2024. No expense was recorded in the three-month period ended September 30, 2023. The increase was due to the
intangible assets acquired from Wilson-Davis, such as the customer list in the Business Combination and related transactions. No such assets existed in the prior
period.Other expenses, which includes, Communications, Occupancy and equipment, Transfer fees, Bank charges and Other, increased to an aggregate of
$451,224 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2024. No expense was recorded in the three-month period ended September 30, 2023. The increase
was primarily due to the operations for Wilson-Davis; the prior period the Company was non-operational.Loss from operations was $978,884 for the three-months
ended September 30, 2024. Loss from operations was $640,813 in the prior period. The increase was primarily due to the operations for Wilson-Davis, the prior
period the Company was non-operational.Other income of $11,710,887 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2024, represents a significant increase
from $526,037 when compared to the three-month period ended September 30, 2023. The increase was due to the changes in fair value of various financial
instruments, which were not issued until the closing of the business combination with Wilson-Davis.Interest income and interest earned on investments held in
trust decreased to $606,758 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2024, represents an approximate 16% decrease from $722,390 when compared to
the prior period. In the prior period, the Company held cash in a trust account for the benefit of Quantuma€™s stockholders which generated $716,882 in the
three-month period ended September 30, 2023 of which no such interest was earned in the three-month period ended September 30, 2024, this was due to the
shareholder redemptions in connection with the business combination.The Company recognized a total of $12,561,125 in gain in change in fair value of financial
instruments for the three-month period ended September 30, 2024. The Company entered into the following financial instruments which are required to be
accounted for at fair value under ASC 815 or ASC 480. As settlement with Chardan the company issued a convertible note to Chardan which required the
conversion element to be accounted for as a derivative resulting in a gain of $3,167,309, this was primarily due to the decrease in stock prices and the fact that the
Company does not have sufficient shares authorized to issue shares which required a change in valuation model from Black-Scholes to Monte Carlo method. The
sellers of Wilson-Davis received convertible short term and long term note which required the conversion element to be accounted for as a derivative resulting in a
gain of $11,152,870 this was primarily due to the decrease in stock prices and the fact that the Company does not have sufficient shares authorized to issue shares
which required a change in valuation model from Black-Scholes to Monte Carlo method as well as a Commitment guarantee resulting in a loss of 38Table of
Contents$839,775. The Company granted earnout shares as part of the consideration paid to AtlasClear, Inc. which resulted in a loss of $340,000. The Company
entered into a Subscription Agreement with a Winston & Strawn which required fair value accounting under ASC 480 creating a loss of $34,841. These
agreements were entered into in connection with the closing of the Business Combination. As such, no such expense was incurred in the three-month period ended
September 30, 2023. The Company recognized a total of $89,535 in loss in change in fair value of secured convertible note for the three-month period ended
September 30, 2024. During the three-month period ended September 30, 2024, the Company entered into an ELOC Agreement (as defined below) which resulted
in a change in fair value of $833,983. This agreement did not exist in the three-month period ended September 30, 2023.Interest expense increased to $1,456,996
for the three-month period ended September 30, 2024 compared to $0 in the prior six-month period ended September 30, 2023. The increase was due to the
convertible secured Notes, the seller notes, the convertible notes and Promissory Notes interest rates ranged from 8% to 13%. These agreements were entered
into in connection with the closing of the Business Combination as such no such expense was incurred in the three-month period ended September 30,
2023.Provision from income taxes of $223,000 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2024 increased by $81,798, from $141,202 in income tax provision
in the prior three-month period ended September 30, 2023, primarily due to the Business Combination resulting in deferred tax liabilities and assets.The foregoing
factors resulted in net income of $10,509,003 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2024, compared to net loss of $255,978 during the prior three-
month period ended September 30, 2023. The increase was primarily due to the gain recognized from changes in fair value of the convertible notes that resulted
from a change is valuation model as a result of the company not having sufficient shares authorized to deliver upon its share obligations. We determined that a
Black-Scholes model did not have the adequate parameters to address the various probability consideration in settlement of such obligations.Liquidity and Capital
Resourcesa€«Cash provided by operating activities for the three-month period ended September 30, 2024 was $175,607 as compared to cash used in operating
activities for the three-month period ended September 30, 2023 of $637,971. This was primarily affected by $371,396 in changes in operational assets and
liabilities and the impact of operating revenue and operating expense due to the Business Combination and asset purchase transaction with AtlasClear. Adjustment
to net income primarily consisted of change in fair value related to various financial instruments as discussed above resulting in an adjustment of $12,561,125.
Further adjustments for the income was non-cash interest expense on convertible notes and other financial instruments of $1,403,503, Fee on sellers note $16,340,
amortization of intangible assets of $307,191 and a gain on Tau agreement of $30,562.Cash used for investing activities for the three-month period ended
September 30, 2024 was $65,000 as compared to $4,151,434 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2023. This is primarily due to the redemptions of
cash held in Quantumé&€™s trust account of $4,286,537. The $65,000 of cash used for investing activities in the period ended September 30, 2024 represents cash
payment towards the AtlasClear Platform.Cash used in financing activities for the three-month period ended September 30, 2024 was $148,383 as compared to
$3,933,556 for the three-month period ended September 30, 2023. This was primarily due to the redemptions of $4,286,537, and advances from related party of
$352,981. During the three-month period ended September 30, 2024, the Company received $148,383 under the ELOC Agreement.a€<Line of Credita€<The
Company has a $10,000,000 revolving line of credit with BMO Harris Bank N.A. The interest rate is determined at the time of borrowing as agreed by the
Company and the bank. The line of credit currently provides for interest at the bankd€™s overnight rate plus 1.5% and is secured by Wilson-Davisa€™ assets. In
addition, the line of credit carries an interest rate of 0.5% on its unused portion. The line of credit agreement requires Wilson-Davis to maintain line of credit
collateral with value, as determined by the bank, in an amount at least equal to a percentage of the loan amount as specified by the bank. Advances on the line of
credit are payable on demand. The entire amount of this credit facility is available to be drawn and used to meet Wilson-Davisa€™ liquidity requirements for NSCC
clearing margin deposits. Wilson-Davis did not draw on its line of credit during the three-month period ended September 30, 2024, and September 30,
2023.39Table of ContentsELOC AgreementOn July 31, 2024, Tau Investment Partners LLC (&€ceTaua€) and the Company entered into an at-the-market agreement
(the &€eELOC Agreementa€). Pursuant to the ELOC Agreement, Tau has committed to purchase, upon the terms thereof and subject to the satisfaction of certain
conditions, up to $10 million of shares of Common Stock, at a price per share equal to 97% of the lowest VWAP of the Common Stock during a pricing period of
three consecutive trading days following Taua€™ s receipt of the applicable advance notice sent by the Company from time to time, over the course of 24 months
from the date of the ELOC Agreement. Each advance may be up to the greater of 100,000 shares or 50% of the average daily volume traded of the shares during
the 30 trading days immediately prior to the date the Company requests each advance. Tau is an underwriter within the meaning of Section 2(a)(11) of the
Securities Act. As of September 30, 2024, the Company has issued 2,475,000 shares under the ELOC for $441,524 of which $148,382 in cash was received.Going
Concernln connection with AtlasClear Holdingsa€™ assessment of going concern considerations in accordance with Financial Accounting Standard Boarda€™s
Accounting Standards Codification Subtopic 205 -40, &€cePresentation of Financial Statements 4€“ Going Concern,a€ the liquidity of the Company raises
substantial doubt about the Companya€™s ability to continue as a going concern through the twelve months following the issuance of the financial statements. If
the Company is unable to raise additional capital, it may be required to take additional measures to conserve liquidity, which could include, but not necessarily be
limited to, curtailing operations and reducing overhead expenses. The Company cannot provide any assurance that new financing will be available to it on
commercially acceptable terms, if at all. No adjustments have been made to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities as a result of this uncertainty.a€<Off-
Balance Sheet Arrangementsa€<The Company has no obligations, assets or liabilities, which would be considered off-balance sheet arrangements as of September
30, 2024.a€<«Contractual Obligationsa€<The Company holds several long-term debt obligations with outside vendors and investors, with loans maturing between
2025 and 2028 (see Note 9 and 14). Additionally, the Company leases office space under several operating leases. The Company has no capital lease obligations.
Further, there are no other outstanding long-term liabilities contractually obligated by the Company.Critical Accounting Policiesa€<The preparation of consolidated
financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and income and expenses during the periods reported. Actual results could materially differ from those estimates.a€<Derivative Liabilitiesa€<We
account for derivative instruments as either equity-classified or liability-classified instruments based on an assessment of the derivative instrumentsa€™ specific
terms and applicable authoritative guidance in Financial Accounting Standards Board (d€eFASBa€) Accounting Standards Codification (&€eASCa€) 480,
Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (4€0eASC 4804€) and ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (a€ceASC 815&€). The assessment considers whether the derivative
instruments are freestanding financial instruments pursuant to ASC 480, meet the definition of a liability pursuant to ASC 480, and whether the derivative
instruments meet all of the requirements for equity classification under ASC 815, including whether the derivative instruments are indexed to our own common
stock, among other conditions for equity classification. This assessment, which requires the use of professional judgment, is conducted at the time of issuance and
as of each subsequent quarterly period end date while financial instruments are outstanding.a€<For issued or modified derivatives that meet all of the criteria for
equity classification, the derivatives are required to be recorded as a component of additional paid-in capital at the time of issuance. For issued or modified
derivatives that do not meet all the criteria for equity classification, the derivatives are required to be recorded at their initial fair value on the date of issuance,
and each balance sheet date thereafter. Changes in the estimated fair value of the derivatives are recognized as a non-cash gain or loss on the statements of
operations.a€<«40Table of Contentsltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Riskd€<Not required for smaller reporting companies.a€<Item 4.
Controls and Proceduresa€<Disclosure Controls and Proceduresa€<Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the SECa€™s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to
ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to the companya€™s management, including its chief executive officer and chief financial officer,
as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.a€<As of September 30, 2024, an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls
and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) was carried out by our management, with the participation of
our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO). Based upon that evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that as of the end of that fiscal
quarter, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective.a€<«Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportinga€<As a result of the business
combination, the Company has incorporated changes in internal controls as it relates to the controls and procedures of Wilson-Davis. The Company has
incorporated additional controls as necessary to enhance our control environment, such as continue to engage consultants or outside accounting firms in order to
ensure proper accounting for our consolidated financial statements and ensure proper communication is maintained between officers and accountants. Except as



discussed, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fiscal quarter covered by this Quarterly Report that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.a€<41Table of ContentsPART II - OTHER
INFORMATIONa&€<Item 1. Legal Proceedingsa€<«On October 23, 2024, the Company and Chardan entered into a settlement agreement, pursuant to which the
parties agreed to settle Chardana€™ s previously disclosed claim against the Company (the a€oceSettlement Agreementa€). In connection with the Settlement
Agreement, Chardan exchanged the Original Chardan Note for the Amended Chardan Note in the aggregate principal amount of $5,209,764.a€<Item 1A. Risk
Factorsa€ «Factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those in this report include the risk factors described in our Transition Report. Any
of these factors could result in a significant or material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition. Additional risk factors not presently
known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business or results of operations. As of the date of this Quarterly Report, there have been
no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in our Transition Report.a€<Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities, Use of Proceeds and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities.a€<The information set forth in the section titled &€ceManagementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operationsa€ above with respect to the issuances under the headings, &€eExpense Settlementsa€”Atlas FinTech,a€ a&€ceExpense Settlementsa€”Lead Nectara€
and a&€ceAmendment to Bank Acquisition Agreement,a€ is incorporated by reference herein. The shares of Common Stock have been or will be issued pursuant to
each of the respective agreements in reliance upon the exemption from registration provided under Section 4(a)(2) and/or Rule 506 of Regulation D of the
Securities Act in transactions not requiring registration under the Securities Act.&€<Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securitiesd€<None.a€<Item 4. Mine Safety
Disclosuresa€<Not applicable.a€<Item 5. Other Informationa€<On November 14, 2024, the Company and Commercial Bancorp agreed to amend the Bank
Acquisition Agreement to extend the termination date of the Bank Acquisition Agreement from November 16, 2024, to May 14, 2025. Pursuant to the Second
Amendment, the parties expect to enter into a new agreement for the Company to acquire the shares held by such shareholders of Commercial Bancorp. No
Commercial Bancorp shareholder is required to agree to such amended or new agreement. Failure to enter into a new agreement or amendment to the Bank
Acquisition Agreement will constitute termination of the Bank Acquisition Agreement without liability. Pursuant to the Second Amendment, the Company will issue
to the shareholders of Commercial Bancorp, without additional compensation, 500,000 shares of common stock and the previously issued 40,000 shares to the
Commercial Bancorp shareholders will be cancelled.a€<42Table of Contentsltem 6. Exhibitsd€<The following exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by
reference into, this Quarterly Report.a€<Exhibit No.A A A A Description3.1Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of AtlasClear Holdings, Inc.
(formerly Calculator New Pubco, Inc.) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companya€™s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-41956), filed with
the SEC on February 15, 2024).3.2Amended and Restated By-Laws of AtlasClear Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Companya€™s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-41956), filed with the SEC on February 15, 2024).10.1At-the-Market Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2024, between
AtlasClear Holdings, Inc. and Tau Investment Partners LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companya€™s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No.
001-41956), filed with the SEC on August 2, 2024).10.2Amended and Restated Convertible Promissory Note, dated as of October 23, 2024, by and between
AtlasClear Holdings, Inc. and Chardan Capital Markets, LLC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companya€™s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-41956), filed with the SEC on October 25, 2024).10.3First Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of October 23, 2024, by and between
AtlasClear Holdings, Inc. and Chardan Capital Markets, LLC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companya€™s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-41956), filed with the SEC on October 25, 2024).10.4*3€<Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of
November 14, 2024, by and between the Company and Commercial Bancorp.31.1*Certification of the Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule
15d-14(a).31.2*Certification of the Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).32.1**Certification of the Chief Executive Officer required
by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. 1350.32.2**a€<Certification of the Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and 18
U.S.C. 1350.101.INS*XBRL Instance Document101.SCH*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document101.CAL*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
Document101.DEF*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document101.LAB*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document101.PRE*XBRL
Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document104*Cover Page Interactive Data File - the cover page interactive data file does not appear in the Interactive
Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document*A A A A A Filed herewith.**A A Furnished herewith.#A A A A Indicates
management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.a€<«43Table of ContentsSIGNATURES&€«In accordance with the requirements of the
Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.A 4€<4€<4€<4€<ATLASCLEAR HOLDINGS,
INC.a€<a€<a€<«Date: November 15, 2024By:/s/ Robert McBeya€<Name:Robert McBeya€«Title:Chief Executive Officera€<a€«(Principal Executive
Officer)a€<a€<a€<Date: November 15, 2024By:/s/ Richard Barbera€Name:Richard Barbera€«Title:Chief Financial Officera€«a€«(Principal Financial
Officer)a€<a€<a€<a€<44Exhibit 10.4Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Mergera€<a€<This Amendment is dated November 14, 2024, by and between AtlasClear
Holdings, Inc., (formerly New Pubco, Inc.) and Commercial Bancorp to amend the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated November 16, 2022 (Agreement).For good
and valuable consideration, the parties agree:1.That the parties expect to enter into a new and mutually agreed agreement for AtlasClear Holdings, Inc. to
acquireA the shares held by such shareholders of Commercial Bancorp. No Commercial Bancorp shareholder is required to agree to such amended or new
agreement. FailureA to enter into a new agreement or amendment to the Agreement shall constitute termination of the AgreementA without liability.2.AtlasClear
Holdings, Inc., shall issue to the shareholders of Commercial Bancorp, without additional compensation, 500,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at execution of
this agreement which will provide a 6-month extension to May 14, 2025. The shares will be issued in a timely manner and will be registered in the individual
shareholders names of Commercial Bancorp. Commercial Bancorp will provide the exact amount to be assigned to each shareholder. The shares will be issued at
todaya€™s (November 14, 2024) market price of $.175. Previously issued shares (40,000) to the Commercial Bancorp shareholders shall be cancelled as if not
issued.a€<AtlasClear Holdings, Inc,a€<a€<«a€<By:/s/ Craig Ridenhoura€«a€<Craig Ridenhour, Presidenta€«a€<a€<«a€<«Commercial Bancorpa€«a€<a€<By:/s/ Wynema
Grossa€<«a€<Wynema Gross, Presidenta€<Exhibit 31.1CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERPURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) UNDER THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 20021, Robert McBey, certify that:1.I
have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of AtlasClear Holdings, Inc.;2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;4.The registranta€™ s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under my supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,A is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared; andb)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report my conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based
on such evaluation; andd)Disclosed in this report any change in the registrantd€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registranta€™ s internal control over financial reporting; and5.The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based
on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrantd€™ s auditors and the audit committee of the registranta€™s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
andb)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™s internal control over
financial reporting.Date: November 15, 2024A A A A A /s/ Robert McBeyA a€<Robert McBeyA a€<Chief Executive OfficerA a€«(Principal Executive
Officer)a€<Exhibit 31.2CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERPURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 20021, Richard Barber, certify that:1.I have reviewed this quarterly report
on Form 10-Q of AtlasClear Holdings, Inc.;2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;4.The
registranta€™s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under my supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant,A is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared; andb)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report my conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; andd)Disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registranta€™s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; and5.The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most
recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit committee of the registranta€™s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; andb)Any
fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™s internal control over financial
reporting.Date: November 15, 2024A A A A A /s/ Richard BarberA a€<Richard BarberA 4€<Chief Financial OfficerA a€«(Principal Financial Officer)a€<Exhibit
32.1CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TOSECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002In connection
with the Quarterly Report of AtlasClear Holdings, Inc. A (the &€ceCompanya€) on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2024, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the 4€ceReporta€), I, Robert McBey, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. A§1350, as adopted pursuant to A§906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:1.The Report fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and2.The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all



material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.Dated: November 15, 2024A A A A A /s/ Robert McBeyA &€<Robert

McBeyA a€<Chief Executive OfficerA a€«(Principal Executive Officer)a€<Exhibit 32.2CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TOSECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002In connection with the Quarterly Report of AtlasClear Holdings, Inc. (the &€ceCompanya€)
on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2024, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the a€ceReporta€), I,
Richard Barber, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. A§1350, as adopted pursuant to A§906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that, to the best of my knowledge:1.The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
and2.The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.Dated:



